Meeting:
Date/Time:
Location:
Contact:
Email:

Health and Wellbeing Board
Thursday, 16 July 2015 at 2.00 pm
Guthlaxton Committee Room, County Hall, Glenfield
Mrs. R. Palmer (Tel: 0116 305 6098)
rosemary.palmer@leics.gov.uk
Membership
Mr. E. F. White CC (Chairman)
Gillian Adams
John Adler
Karen English
Lesley Hagger
Ch. Supt. Sally Healy
Mr. Dave Houseman MBE, CC
Dr Andy Ker
Dr Satheesh Kumar

Dr Mayur Lakhani
Rick Moore
Mr. I. D. Ould CC
Cllr. P. Posnett
Toby Sanders
Mike Sandys
Trish Thompson
Jon Wilson

AGENDA
Item

Report by

1.

Minutes of the meeting held on 14 May 2015
and Action Log.

2.

To advise of any other items which the
Chairman has decided to take as urgent
elsewhere on the agenda.

3.

Declarations of interest in respect of items on
the agenda.

4.

Position Statement by the Chairman.

(Pages 5 - 16)

Strategy.
5.

Better Care Together.

Better Care Together

(Pages 17 - 24)

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall
Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk
www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy

www.facebook.com/leicsdemocracy

www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy

6.

Better Care Together Mental Health
Resilience and Recovery: Review of Third
Sector Contracts.

West Leicestershire
Clinical
Commissioning
Group

(Pages 25 - 32)

7.

Emotional Health and Wellbeing of Children
and Young People: Better Care Together
Workstream Update.

Director of Children
and Family Services,
Director of Children
and Family Services
and Clinical
Commissioning
Group

(Pages 33 - 38)

8.

Special Educational Needs and Disabilities
Reform Update.

Director of Children
and Family Services

(Pages 39 - 46)

9.

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment Refresh.

Director of Public
Health

(Pages 47 - 76)

10. Healthwatch Update: Ambulance Handover
at Leicester Royal Infirmary.

Healthwatch

(Pages 77 - 82)

11. Ambulance Handovers.

University Hospitals
of Leicester, East
Midlands Ambulance
Service and the
Clinical
Commissioning
Groups

(Pages 83 - 92)

12. Progress of the Better Care Fund
Emergency Admissions Avoidance
Schemes.

Director of Health and (Pages 93 - 98)
Care Integration

13. Performance Update at the end of Quarter
4.

Chief Executive and
Greater East
Midlands
Commissioning
Support Unit

(Pages 99 116)

14. Personal Medical Services Review.

NHS England

(Pages 117 124)

Performance.

15. Date of next meeting.
The next meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board will be held on 17 September
2015 at 2.00pm.
16. Any other items which the Chairman has
decided to take as urgent.

3

Agenda Item 1

Minutes of a meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board held at County Hall, Glenfield on
Thursday, 14 May 2015.
PRESENT
Leicestershire County Council
Mr. E. F. White CC (In the Chair)
Mr. Dave Houseman MBE, CC
Mr. I. D. Ould CC

Jon Wilson

Clinical Commissioning Groups
Karen English
Dr Andy Ker
Prof Mayur Lakhani
Leicestershire Partnership NHS Trust
Dr Satheesh Kumar
Healthwatch Leicestershire
Rick Moore
Leicestershire District/Borough Councils
Cllr John Boyce
Cllr Pam Posnett
In attendance
Rob Howard, Leicestershire County Council
Gill Weston, Leicestershire County Council
Caroline Trevithick, West Leicestershire Clinical Commissioning Group
Mark Wightman, University Hospitals of Leicester
Prof Aly Rashid, NHS England
186. Minutes.
The minutes of the meeting held on 12 March 2015 were taken as read, confirmed and
signed.
187. Urgent Items.
There were no urgent items for consideration.
188. Declarations of interest.

4
The Chairman invited members who wished to do so to declare any interest in respect of
items on the agenda for the meeting.
No such declarations were made.
189. Position Statement by the Chairman.
The Chairman presented a position statement on the following matters:Local Developments
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Using the Health and Care System Wisely: Choose Better;
Better Care Together: Transforming Health and Care in Leicester, Leicestershire
and Rutland;
Engaging with the Voluntary and Community Sector;
Leicestershire Partnership Trust new ‘health for teens’ website;
Leicester’s Eating Disorder Service;
New Parking Facilities at Leicester Royal Infirmary;
Latest results from the Friends and Family Test Survey.
Leicester’s Marvellous Medicine;
West Leicestershire CCG seeks feedback on plans in Hinckley;;
Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment Published;
Mental Health Awareness Week;
Mental Health Training for Leicestershire’s Frontline Staff.

National Developments
•
•
•

Vanguards for the New Models of Care in the Five Year Forward View;
Latest News on Integration Pioneers;
NHS England Announces National Maternity Review;

General Publications
•
•
•
•

Measuring National Wellbeing: 2015 Report;
Sod 70! The Guide to Living Well;
Tracking the Development of Healthwatch;
LGA’s Support Offer and Resources for Health and Wellbeing Boards.

A copy of the position statement is filed with these minutes.

190. Mental Health Investment 2015/16.
The Board considered a report from the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Clinical
Commissioning Groups which provided an interim briefing regarding how the additional
funding for Mental Health announced in the Budget for 2015/16 would be allocated in
Leicestershire. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 5’ is filed with these minutes.
It was noted that national funding was also expected for the Child and Adolescent Mental
Health Service (CAMHS). The Board reemphasised the importance of CAMHS and the
need to seek further assurance that the Better Care Together workstream on the

5
emotional health and wellbeing of children was progressing at pace, given the range of
concerns raised in the recent CAMHS report to the Health and Wellbeing Board.
Concern was expressed that a small number of inpatients were being placed out of area.
The number of out of area patients had been reduced to almost zero during the previous
summer but this had not been sustained. It was noted that the solution was multifactorial and that work had been undertaken to improve the promptness and
effectiveness of the crisis response service and the availability of alternatives to hospital
admission. The health and social care system now needed to work together to reduce
length of stay.
It was noted that there was no growth in funding for dementia services. However, the
Board was assured that a lot of work had already been undertaken to support the drive
for early diagnosis of dementia and that the priorities from the pre-existing Leicester,
Leicestershire and Rutland wide dementia strategy, including such initiatives as the
introduction of memory clinics, had been implemented. This had included additional
capacity at Leicestershire Partnership Trust (LPT) and work on the pathway across
primary and secondary care including shared care agreements between LPT clinicians
and GPs, which would enable patients to be returned to in primary care at the appropriate
stage, thus improving access and wait times for consultant led services at LPT.
Regarding access to IAPT, a further national announcement was anticipated about
additional funding. West Leicestershire CCG had identified £90,000 investment for IAPT
in advance of the national funding being confirmed. Both CCGs were awaiting further
details of the level of funding from NHS England.
RESOLVED:
(a) That the report be noted;
(b) That further reports to provide assurance on the implementation and impact of the
changes, demonstrating how the investment has improved parity of esteem, be
submitted to the Health and Wellbeing Board biannually, with the first report in
September 2015;
(c) That the commissioners be advised to seek support from Healthwatch
Leicestershire in assessing the impact of the additional investment in mental
health from the public’s perspective;
(d) That officers be requested to submit a progress report on the work on the
emotional health and wellbeing of children to the next meeting of the Board.
191. NHS Quality Premium 2015/16.
The Board considered a report from East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG and West
Leicestershire CCG which provided information on specific indicators that related to the
Quality Premium 2015/16 and requested support on those indicators where choices
needed to be made. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 6’ is filed with these
minutes.
It was felt that the indicators for the Quality Premium, a nationally prescribed menu from
the NHS Outcomes framework that CCGS had to select from, did not support the

6
principles of health and social care integration; for example the Delayed Transfers of
Care target only related to a reduction in delays attributable to the NHS.
There were additional subsets of targets that would sit underneath each indicator. For
example, East Leicestershire and Rutland’s local priority on care planning would have
underneath it targets relating to End of Life Care and reducing emergency admissions.
The quality of care plans would be measured through this subset of targets.
It was noted that one of the mental health indicators, which had not been selected for the
Quality Premium, was the reduction in the number of people with severe mental illness
who were currently smokers.
Despite not being part of the quality premium, Public Health Consultants were keen to
work with the CCGs to enable the Stop Smoking Service to support this vulnerable group
of people.
RESOLVED:
That the options made by East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG and West Leicestershire
CCG, as set out in paragraph 4 of the report, be supported.
192. A Week in Leicester Royal Infirmary: The Patient Perspective.
The Board considered a report from Healthwatch Leicestershire which set out the
findings of staff, board members and volunteers who spent four days at Leicester Royal
Infirmary in January 2015 listening to patients and talking to staff in Accident and
Emergency, the Discharge Lounge, Ophthalmology Eye Clinic and Eye Casualty and the
Ear, Nose and Throat Department. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 7’ is filed
with these minutes.
Healthwatch was commended on the quality of the report and clear presentation of the
information. It was suggested that, for further clarity, future reports should consistently
use both percentages or whole numbers so the relative proportions of respondents could
be understood, putting total numbers into perspective.
It was noted that UHL’s Quality and Assurance Committee would receive Healthwatch’s
report and determine how the issues raised would be progressed. East Leicestershire
and Rutland CCG confirmed that its Governing Body had received the report and worked
through the key messages it contained for CCGs. The Urgent Care Board would also
consider the report and its recommendations.
RESOLVED:
That the recommendations set out on page 7 of the report be supported.
193. Joint Health and Social Care Autism Self Assessment.
The Board considered a report of the Director of Adults and Communities which set out
the findings of the 2014/15 Joint Health and Social Care Autism Self-Assessment and
provided details of the use of the a Department of Health non recurrent Section 31 grant.
A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 8’ is filed with these minutes.

7
It was suggested that future reports should provide details of how much improvement
was needed to housing and accommodation and the specific areas where this was
needed.
It was noted that that the Autism Self Assessment was adult centric, although it did have
some regard to children with autism. The Department of Health Grant was for adults
only; it was felt that it would be useful to have something similar in place for children.
RESOLVED:
(a) That the Joint Health and Social Care Autism Self Assessment be noted;
(b) That a report on the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Autism Strategy and
Action Plan be submitted to the Health and Wellbeing Board in due course.

194. Adjustment to Emergency Admissions Baseline for the Better Care Fund - Urgent Action
by the Chief Executive.
The Board considered a report of the Chief Executive which informed the Health and
Wellbeing Board of the urgent action taken by the Chief Executive, following consultation
with the Chairman of the Health and Wellbeing Board, to approve increasing the total
non-elective admission target within the Better Care Fund to 2,041. A copy of the report
marked ‘Agenda Item 9’ is filed with these minutes.
RESOLVED:
That the urgent action taken by the Chief Executive be noted.
195. Better Care Fund (BCF) Quarterly Performance Reporting.
The Board considered a report of the Director of Health and Care Integration which
provided assurance on the quarterly reporting requirements for the Better Care Fund
including the pay for performance element of the fund, which was linked to achieving
reductions in emergency admissions. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 10’ is
filed with these minutes.
It was noted that an analysis of the types of admissions to UHL made during January –
April 2015 was being carried out by the systems resilience group in order to assess
where over performance had been experienced and in which patient categories. This
data would support the ongoing analysis of the impact of the Better Care Fund Schemes.
The analysis would identify such issues as whether, since the introduction of the falls
scheme with EMAS, there had been an evident reduction in the number of admissions at
UHL due to falls, despite the over performance in the overall number of total emergency
admissions in the first quarter. A further report on the findings of this analysis would be
submitted to the Health and Wellbeing Board in July.
RESOLVED:
That the process for submitting the first quarterly return to NHS England on 29 May 2015
be approved.

8
196. Date of Next Meeting.
It was noted that the next meeting of the Board would be held on Thursday 16 July at
2.00pm.

2.00 - 3.15 pm
14 May 2015

CHAIRMAN

Health and Wellbeing Board Action Log

No.
158

Date

Action

Responsible
Officer
22/01/15 Healthwatch to submit the findings of the Special Toby Sanders/
Inquiry Report and visit to the Leicester Royal
Gillian Adams
Infirmary Discharge Lounge to the Discharge
Workstream of the Urgent Care Board for
consideration.

Comments

Status

The Special Inquiry report has not yet been released. GREEN
This is due to be finalised to coincide with the
Healthwatch England Special Inquiry report due to be
launched toward the middle of July.

159(b)

159(c)

9

The Discharge Lounge was visited on the 29 January
as part of the week Healthwatch spent at Leicester
Royal Infirmary (LRI). The findings can be found in
the report 'A Week at LRI, The Patient Perspective'.
The report was presented at the Urgent Care Board
on the 19 March, the recommendations were
accepted and a subsequent meeting was set up with
the LLR Urgent Care Programme Delivery Lead,
Sarah Smith to discuss how the recommendations
can be taken forward.
22/01/15 Seek further assurance from partner agencies
Cheryl Davenport The quarterly BCF target for Q1 of 2015/16 is 275.6 GREEN
about the actions in progress to improve hospital
delayed days per 100,000 population. The position in
discharge and the impact these will have and
April was slightly higher at 289.2.
refer any concerns to the Urgent Care Board.
On the snapshot date of the last Thursday in April
there were 11 peopled delayed due to ASC-only
reasons. This is a similar level to the position through
autumn/ winter last year. The comparable figure for
NHS delays (37) continues the downwards trend
noted last month.
22/01/15 Integration Executive and Urgent Care Board to Cheryl Davenport Discussed at the Integration Executive in January.
GREEN
consider how the Leicester, Leicestershire and
The July Integration Executive will review DTOC
Rutland health and care system can achieve a
progress (this is 6 months after the issue was raised).
truly integrated approach to hospital discharge in
the medium term.

1

Health and Wellbeing Board Action Log

No.

Date

159(e)

22/01/15 Integration Executive to consider if any
adjustments are needed within the Better Care
Fund Plan in 2015/16 in support of the urgent
care system at its meeting on 27th January.

160(a)

22/01/15 Submit the draft Self Assessment and local
action plan arising from the joint Health and
Social Care Self Assessment Framework to the
next meeting of the Board for consideration.

160(b)

22/01/15 Submit a joint report from NHS England and the Louisa Whait
County Council to the Health and Wellbeing
Board as emerging priorities from April 2015
with regard to Winterbourne become clear.

Scheduled for the meeting of the Board in July

161(b)

22/01/15 Submit an update on work to improve Child and
Adolescent Mental Health Services to the next
meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board for
consideration.
22/01/15 Submit updates on work to progress the Special
Educational Needs and Disabilities reforms to
each meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board
until March 2016.
22/01/15 Submit a report outlining the implications of the
Disabled Children’s Charter to the Health and
Wellbeing Board in Spring 2015.
22/01/15 Organise a development session for members of
the Health and Wellbeing Board to include
training on the Ofsted Inspection Framework for
Special Educational Needs and Disabilities.

Considered by the Board in March. A further report GREEN
on the Better Care Together workstream for the
emotional health and wellbeing of children will be
considered by the Board in July.
Reports scheduled for all future Board meetings until GREEN
March 2016

162(c)

162(d)

Responsible
Comments
Status
Officer
Cheryl Davenport This was initially discussed at the Integration
GREEN
Executive in January. The Step Up/Step Down Group
is reviewing all BCF funded DTOC schemes in June
and will report back to the Integration Executive in
July.
Louisa Whait
Considered by the Board in March
GREEN

Lesley Hagger

Gill Weston

GREEN

Gill Weston

Considered by the Board in March.

Lesley Hagger

This will now form a report to the Board in November. GREEN

10

162(b)

Action

GREEN

2

Health and Wellbeing Board Action Log

Date

Action

Responsible
Officer
Janine Dellar

163(e)

22/01/15 Ask the JSNA/JHWS Steering Board be asked
to:(i) Monitor the action plans of the key health and
social care drivers and provide assurance to the
Health and Wellbeing Board that the collective
action plans will deliver the key objectives of the
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy;
(ii) Measure progress against the key outcomes
identified in the Joint Health and Wellbeing
Strategy through the Health and Wellbeing
Board performance report on a quarterly basis,
with operational delivery led by the sub-groups
and their respective action plans.

164(b)

22/01/15 The Director of Public Health to liaise with NHS Mike Sandys
England and the Clinical Commissioning Groups
regarding GP engagement with the Health
Protection Board.

170(b)

12/03/15 Submit a report on progress with actions for the Louisa Whait
Joint Health and Social Care Self Assessment
(Learning Disabilities) relating to the issues
identified by the Board to a future meeting of the
Board.

Comments

Status

JSNA/JHWS Steering Board is delivering the actions GREEN
as agreed.

Further work is being completed to review the Health GREEN
Protection Board terms of reference. This has
included ensuring that at least one Chief Nurse
attends the meeting (on behalf of all LLR CCGS) and
plus representation from each CCG. The
representatives’ role will include feeding in/out any
GP/CCG concerns.
Scheduled for September 2015
GREEN

11

No.

3

Health and Wellbeing Board Action Log

No.
170(c)
and(e)

173(a)

Action

Responsible
Officer
12/03/15 Ask the CCGs to:Toby Sanders/
(i) develop a mechanism for receiving feedback Karen English
on the quality of health checks for people with
learning disabilities from service users and
carers;
(ii) confirm their target for improving the number
of health checks to be completed in 2015/16.

Comments

Status

(i) There is currently a feedback questionnaire
AMBER
included in the health check leaflet that was produced
to go out to service users and carers from GPs as
part of the LD health check invitation. However, the
return rate for this has been very low and GPs do not
always include it with their invitation letters. The
leaflet was originally produced back in 2010, this is
currently being revised and will be re-launched to
GPs.
It has been agreed that a random selection of service
users and carers from across the 3 CCG areas will be
invited to take part in face-to-face focus groups to
discuss their experiences of LD Health checks. This
has been written into the LD Primary Care Liaison
Nurse Work plan for 2015-16.
(ii) The figures from last year have only just become
available from NHSE, Leicester City achieved 73%,
West Leicestershire CCG 72% and East
Leicestershire and Rutland CCG achieved 52%. The
Strategy and Planning leads for the 3 CCGs have
been sent this data and are currently agreeing their
targets for 2015/6.

12

170(d)

Date

Rosemary Palmer The issues relating to DOLs are being monitored
GREEN
12/03/15 Refer the safeguarding issues raised by the
through the Performance Framework considered by
Joint Health and Social Care Self Assessment to
the Safeguarding Boards for consideration.
the Safeguarding Effectiveness Group on a quarterly
basis.
12/03/15 Submit the report on the Emotional Health and Toby Sanders
Better Care Together has established a leadership
GREEN
Wellbeing of Children to the next meeting of the
board to direct the work on the Emotional Health and
Better Care Together Partnership Board for
Wellbeing of Children, co-chaired by Dawn Leese
consideration.
and Lesley Hagger. The draft terms of reference
have been submitted to the HWB at its July meeting
for information.

4

Health and Wellbeing Board Action Log

Date

173(b)

12/03/15 Toby Sanders to identify a health officer to colead the work on the emotional health and
wellbeing of children with Lesley Hagger.
12/03/15 Submit a progress report, including data relating
to safeguarding and adolescent suicide and
timescales for the completion of this work to a
future meeting of the Health and Wellbeing
Board.
12/03/15 Share the mind mapping product from the
Unified Prevention Board with the Health and
Wellbeing Board members for information.
12/03/15 The Director of Public Health to establish a
formal relationship with NHS England for
developing the commissioning plans for
pharmaceutical services.
12/03/15 Refer the comments made regarding the LSCB
and SAB Business Plans to the Safeguarding
Boards for consideration.
12/03/15 Submit a further report reviewing the
effectiveness of the implementation of Phase 1
of the Care Act and setting out the requirements
for Phase 2 to a future meeting of the Health
and Wellbeing Board.
12/03/15 The Chief Executive of Leicestershire County
Council to revise and agree with the CGGs the
target for the number of Emergency Admissions
into hospital within the Better Care Fund Plan
and to report the outcome of his decision to the
next meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board.

173(c)

173(d)

176(e)

177(b)

178(b)

181

Action

Responsible
Officer
Toby Sanders

Comments

Status

Dawn Leese, Chief Nurse and Quality Officer for
Leicester City CCG co-leads this work.

GREEN

Lesley Hagger

Scheduled for July 2015

GREEN

Mike Sandys

Circulated on 15 June

GREEN

Mike Sandys

A request has been sent to NHS England but a
response has not yet been received.

AMBER

Rosemary Palmer Comments have been forwarded to the LSCB/SAB
Business Office

GREEN

Mandy Stott

This will be considered by the Board in September

GREEN

John Sinnott

Revised target agreed and reported to the Health and GREEN
Wellbeing Board on 14 May 2015 (2,041 emergency
admissions).

13

No.

5

Health and Wellbeing Board Action Log

No.
182(a)

183

190(a)

190(c)

193(b)

Action

Responsible
Officer
12/03/15 With regard to SEND Reform, the issues relating Gill Weston
to integrated personal commissioning be
considered by the Integration Executive.

12/03/15 Officers to produce a formal commentary on the
EMAS Quality Account, based on this Board’s
discussions, and incorporating the views of
members of the Board who were not present,
and send it to EMAS
14/05/15 Submit further reports to the Health and
Wellbeing Board biannually, with the first report
in September 2015, to provide assurance on the
implementation and impact of the mental health
policy changes and associated investment,
demonstrating how the investment has improved
parity of esteem
14/05/15 Commissioners to seek support from
Healthwatch Leicestershire in assessing the
impact of the additional investment in mental
health from the public’s perspective.
14/05/15 Submit a progress report on the work on the
emotional health and wellbeing of children to the
next meeting of the Board.
14/05/15 Submit a report on the Leicester, Leicestershire
and Rutland Autism Strategy and Action Plan to
the Health and Wellbeing Board in due course.

Comments

Status

Integrated Personal Commissioning will be
considered by the Integration Executive in August.

GREEN

Rosemary Palmer Commentary has been produced and sent to EMAS.

GREEN

Jim Bosworth

Report scheduled for September

GREEN

Jim Bosworth

The report in September (item 190(a) refers) will
reflect this.

GREEN

Lesley Hagger

Report scheduled for July

GREEN

Louisa Whait

Report scheduled for September

GREEN

14

190(b)

Date

6

July 2015

Update to Leicestershire
Health and Wellbeing board

Better care together

15

Agenda Item 5

•

•

•

•

•

Better care together is a major change project that will reconfigure the way that health
and social care is delivered across Leicestershire, Leicester and Rutland over 5 years
It is run by a partnership of all health and social care delivery organisations
supporting the region, plus the health and wellbeing boards, Healthwatch, a public
and patient involvement group and members of the voluntary sector
In essence we are attempting to transform health and social care services in
Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland from cradle to grave.
It is a massive undertaking, but is necessary to ensure the services we all provide
meet the changing needs of the communities we serve as well as addressing some of
the growing health inequalities that are greatly impacting our local people.
There is a strong case for change across the system and in the words of one of our
clinical leads “We need to learn how to do today’s work differently so that tomorrow’s
work is easier”

Recap: What is Better care together

16

•

•

•

The Better care together programme we launched in 2014 has now reached its initial
implementation phase, having gained formal agreement to a Strategic Outline Case
from both NHS England and the Trust Development Authority.
There are a number of changes already implemented, some planned for this year,
funding permitting, and some that are planned post public consultation and so will be
delivered from 2016 onwards.
Public consultation is planned for Autumn 2015 and is presently expected to start in
late November.

Status: What is the present status of BCT

17

•

It is acknowledged that while the support of our various regulators was being gained there has
been very little engagement with staff, however change has been taking place. For example;
– Demolition work has begun at the Leicester Royal Infirmary in preparation for its new
£43.3m Emergency Department. The new facility will be the UK's first frailty friendly
emergency department. It will also have a fully integrated mental health unit, state of the art
imaging and dedicated rapid ambulance access.
– Hernia procedures are now being carried out under local anaesthetic at some GP practices
and health centres in Leicestershire and Rutland. Meaning people can receive care closer to
home and don't have to travel to larger city hospitals.
– A new crisis response pathway is now in place in mental health services including the
opening of a new crisis house. These current changes are now being reviewed in order to
assess their impact so far.
– Improved availability of assistive technology to support people to stay out of hospital.
– A multi-agency workshop is planned to refresh and review the dementia plan for people in
Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland to meet the needs of our changing population.

Achievements to date

18

•

There are also a number of major changes planned for 2015/16 which include:
– Additional recovery colleges for patients with mental health issues.
– Improvements to services for patients with learning disabilities.
– Re-location of some intensive community support services from UHL to a
community setting closer to home.
– Changes to planned care pathways and increased level of care provided in
community as opposed to acute settings.
– Increased information sharing across primary care.
– Public consultation for all the changes included within the Better care together
programme scope.

Planned for 2015/16

19

•

•

•

As well as describing how care across Leicestershire, Leicester and Rutland will be improved, the
Better care together engagement campaign run in the Spring of 2015 outlined a number of
potentially significant proposed changes that will be discussed as part of the Consultation
conversation this Autumn
The following have already been signposted as things we need to discuss:
– City hospitals wishing to become smaller and more specialist with more services being
delivered via the community
– Acute services being consolidated onto two sites and the clinical view being that this should
be the Royal and the Glenfield hospitals
– A different future for the General hospital
– Community hospital hubs will be developed in hospitals that are in the best condition and
location.
– Increasing intensive community support services where patients are cared for at home
– The options for and the future shape of maternity services
– The options for and the future share of services to support new-borns
A private session in September to introduce elected members to the options and discuss them
from a locality impact perspective is being discussed with the council executive team

The conversation for the Autumn

20

•

•

A public engagement campaign was run in spring of 2015 to assess the public view of
the Better care together strategy.
More than 1000 responses were received over a four week period and they
confirmed the general public support for the strategic direction, including;
– 89% (945) respondents to the questionnaire agree that health and social care
needs to change the how and where it works to meet the changing population
– 94% (999) respondents agree that we all have a responsibility to look after our
own health
– 87% (919) respondents feel that big city hospitals should focus on specialist and
emergency care, with some simpler care transferring to the community hospitals/
GP services
– When asked what is most important to people when choosing a service 44%
(469) said the appointment availability/waiting times; 38% (397) said the
specialist you will see
– When respondents were asked what do you think about the proposals relating to
the eight healthcare areas, the majority of people agreed with the proposals.

What do the public think so far?

21

August

First Draft of
Public facing
Narrative
September

Elected
Officers
Engagement
events

Some key dates

October
Agreed
Pre-consultation
Business case

First Final
Draft of
Public facing
Narrative

November

Final sign
Off of
Material
For
consultation

November

Consultation
Launch
events

22

3rd Sector Review

Resilience & Recovery
23

Agenda Item 6

Next Steps:
• Identify 3rd sector contribution to recovery network incl. Peer Support
workers
• Conclude 3rd sector contract review & actions
• Agree measurable targets to CAMHs & adult resilience interventions

Achievements:
• Agreed 3 new Recovery College sites & 3rd sector involvement
• Initiated review of 3rd sector contracts
• Supporting 3rd sector APP

Background: Resilience & Recovery

24

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

‘Five ways to wellbeing’
Mental health awareness training
Tackling stigma
Children and young people’s mental health
Workplace health
Social prescribing
Recovery College
Suicide prevention

The BCT recovery and resilience work stream has focussed on short and long term
goals which in 2015/16 will be specifically deliver increased population resilience
through interventions in the following key areas:

Resilience is the ability to cope with challenges in life and to adapt to adversity. It
supports emotional health and wellbeing and helps prevent the new or recurrent
onset of mental illness.

Resilience

25

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Teenage mediation
‘Thinkwise’
Other school based mental health and resilience programmes
Healthy Workplaces
Probation Health Trainers
Mental Health and Suicide Awareness training
‘Reading Aloud’
Arts on prescription
Exercise programmes to improve mental health
Brief interventions (alcohol)

LCC public mental health commissioned services: Resilience

26

Recovery

Resilience

·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·

·

·
·

·
·

Psychological Therapies/ Counselling services including relationship and
bereavement counselling
Educational and employment support services
Information and advice services
Peer support services
Confidence building programs
Befriending schemes
Carers support services
Housing related support services
Advocacy services

General MH well-being promotion (e.g. 5 ways of mental well-being)
MH promotion and awareness in schools/ colleges/ workplaces
/community/faith groups
Local Reducing stigma and tackling discrimination initiatives
Suicide prevention awareness

3rd Sector – Potential Roles

27

Carers Trust / Crossroads
Community Advice & Law Service Ltd
Foundation Housing
LAMP (PEER Advocacy Project)
Leicester Charity Link
Leicester Housing Association Support
Network for Change
People's Forum
Quetzal
Rethink - Focusline (MH Support Line)
Rethink - Homeless Outreach Worker
Rethink Carer Support
YMCA

3rd Sector – Current CCG Contracts

28

• Time line may vary for different agreements

• De commission & let new agreements where there is not alignment

• Consider amendments to existing arrangements to align with LA
partners & resilience & recovery model

• Review what contracts do and VFM

3rd sector – Next Steps

29

• Consider in what ways the 3rd sector could be re commissioned to
meet BCT aspirations of resilience and recovery.

• Comment on the Recovery ‘Journey’ and consider how this can be
developed on a locality basis

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to:

Recommendations

30

31

Agenda Item 7

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 16TH JULY 2015
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES
EMOTIONAL HEALTH AND WELLBEING OF CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE
– BETTER CARE TOGETHER WORK STREAM UPDATE
Purpose of Report
1.

The Health and Wellbeing Board has received two previous reports about the
progress of the Better Care Together work stream with regard to the
emotional health and wellbeing of children and young people. This report
provides a further update and also addresses questions raised by the Board
at its meeting in May 2015 when it considered a paper about new national
funding available to support adult mental health services. Those questions
concerned:
a) funding for child and adolescent mental health services (paragraphs 3-5
below);
b) data relating to safeguarding and adolescent suicide (to be provided at the
meeting);
c) timescales/milestones for the BCT work stream with regard to the
emotional health and wellbeing of children and young people (paragraphs
5 and 6 below);
d) the identification of appropriate leadership from within health to support the
work stream (paragraphs 7 and 8 below).

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions
2.

The national ambition to improve child and adolescent mental health services
by 2020 has now been strengthened by the publication of a national Strategy,
Future in Mind (March 2015). This sets out a clear direction for local
leadership across the system to work together to improve mental health
services and outcomes. Central to this is their recommendation that local
partners to health and wellbeing boards (HWBs), including schools and wider
partners, develop and agree a local transformation plan for children and
young people's mental health and wellbeing

Funding – national and local
3.

The local transformation plan will also be used by NHS England to allocate
and oversee new money committed by central government to improve

32

children's mental health services as set out in the Autumn Statement and in
the Budget, which includes funding for some specific deliverables. However,
all partners are clear there must be flexibility for local partners to reflect on
their whole system and develop what is needed to improve outcomes locally.
4.

NHS England has provided the following statement: “For this year, NHS
England will ‘assure’ plans prior to releasing funding; this will be a light touch
process and will require sign off by the HWB. In recognition of the challenging
timescales, the recommendation is for a representative from the local
authority who is also a member of the HWB, to take responsibility for working
with the lead Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) to develop and sign off the
plan and ensure the HWB is fully sighted on this work. This could include, for
example, the director of children's services, director of public health, lead
member for children's services, portfolio holder for health or chair of the
HWB.”

Timescales/milestones
5.

NHS England will allocate funding via CCGs. For 2015/16, money will be
allocated in-year, which means the pace for the development of plans over
the summer and sign off and allocation of funding in the autumn will be tight.

6.

Transformation plans will be live documents to be developed in coming years
as part of mainstream processes and it is expected that the same
commitment to ongoing development and mainstreaming of this will occur at a
national level. Transformation plan guidance is expected to be published on
the w/c 13 July 2015. HWBs with the lead CCG will therefore want to explore
how this will work locally, including joining up with other CCGs and/or local
authorities, and ensure that all key partners, including schools and the
voluntary sector, are involved in developing these plans.

7.

As a result of the engagement, mapping, and analysis that has been carried
out across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland in the past few months, the
sub-region is well-prepared to develop its Transformation plan and a draft is
currently being prepared, prior to the release of the guidance, to ensure that
all timescales can be met.

8.

Leicester City CCG is soon to become the lead commissioner for children’s
health services. The Chief Nurse at Leicester City CCG has been identified to
support the work stream alongside the Director of Children and Family
Services at Leicestershire County Council.

9.

A Leadership Board has been established to progress this work. The
Leadership Board will be co-chaired by the CCG Chief Nurse and LCCs
Director of Children and Family Services. Its draft Terms of Reference are
attached at Appendix A. Its first meeting will take place on 28th July 2015.
This meeting will focus on the draft Transformation plan, which will then need
to be agreed through the various governance systems across the sub-region.

33

Recommendations
10.

It is recommended that, in view of the timescales for submitting the
Transformation plan to draw down funding for 2015/16, the HWB agrees that
the Leadership Board can develop the plan and that sign off can be delegated
to the Chairs of the HWB, the Lead Members for Children’s Services and the
Directors for Children’s Services and for Public Health, pending a further full
report to each of the LLR HWBs.

Officer to Contact
11.

Lesley Hagger
Director, Children and Family Services
Lesley.hagger@leics.gov.uk
0116 305 6340

34

Appendix A
Better Care Together Leadership Board for the emotional health and wellbeing
of children and young people
DRAFT TERMS OF REFERENCE
1 Introduction
Strong emotional health and wellbeing is a key element of a healthy childhood. All
agencies that support children, and those that care for them, can contribute towards
healthy emotional development and the establishment of good mental health into
adulthood.
A child with good emotional health and wellbeing will have a sense of
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

feeling loved, trusted, understood, valued and safe
being interested in life and having opportunities to enjoy themselves
being hopeful and optimistic
being able to learn and having opportunities to succeed
accepting who they are and recognising what they are good at
having a sense of belonging in their family, school and community
feeling they have some control over their own life
having the strength to cope when something is wrong (resilience) and the
ability to solve problems.

They will have the capacity to
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Develop psychologically, emotionally, spiritually, creatively and intellectively
Initiate, develop and sustain mutually satisfying relationships
Use and enjoy solitude
Be aware of others and empathise with them
Play and learn
Develop a sense of right and wrong
Face and resolve problems and setbacks and learn from them.

A range of organisations have responsibility for fostering the educational, social and
healthy development of children and young people. These organisations agree that
by working together they can deliver effective and co-ordinated services which make
best use of limited resources.

Within Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland, a Better Care Together (BCT)
programme has been established to co-ordinate health and social care services.
This Leadership Board will be part of the BCT Programme.

35

2

Purpose

The Leadership Board will give strategic direction to all partnership work across
Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland to improve the emotional health and wellbeing
of children and young people.
It will prepare the joint strategy for comprehensive services to support the emotional
health and mental health of children and young people.
It will consider opportunities for strategic partnership approaches including lead
commissioning, joint commissioning and pooling of budgets.
The Leadership Board will establish and commission multi-agency task groups to
undertake specific items of work.
The Leadership Board will establish a stakeholder group and stakeholder forums

3

Specific objectives

Specific objectives for the Board will include:
Development of a shared strategy for child emotional health and wellbeing
Joint commissioning of services to specifically support children’s emotional health
and wellbeing.
Overview of performance and impact of services to improve emotional health and
wellbeing.

4

Governance

The Board will report to the BCT Childrens Workstream. It will also prepare reports
for the Health and Wellbeing Boards for Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland.
There will also be links to other workstreams, in particular the Mental Health
workstream.

5

Scope

The scope of the Board will include all services supporting the educational, social
and health development of children from birth to age 18.

36

6

Membership

Director of Children and Family Services - Leicestershire County Council
Director of Nursing and Quality – Leicester City Clinical Commissioning Group
Consultant in Public Health – Leicestershire County Council
Consultant in Public Health – Leicester City Council
Associate Director for Children and Families Commissioning – West Leicestershire
Clinical Commissioning Group
Representative from Rutland County Council
Director of Children Families and Young People Services – Leicestershire
Partnership Trust
NHS England representation
Healthwatch representative
Commissioning Manager for CAMHS
All members should attend regularly and, where possible, should have a designated
deputy.
7

Frequency of meetings

Meetings should be held at least every three months although more frequent
meetings may be required at certain times.

July 2015, October 2015, January 2016, April 2016

37

Agenda Item 8

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 16th JULY 2015
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES
SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND DISABILITIES (SEND) REFORM
UPDATE
Purpose of report
1.

The purpose of this report is to update the Health and Wellbeing Board on the
progress to date in regards to the implementation of SEND reform as part of the
Children and Families Act.

2.

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to:
a. Note the current progress in implementing SEND reform, particularly in relation to
the integrated working and contribution made by health professionals;
b. Note the intention of Ofsted to develop a specific framework to inspect local areas
from spring 2016.

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions
3.

The Children and Families Act received Royal Assent on 13th March 2014. Part 3 of
the Children and Families Act outlines new responsibilities across education, health
and social care for children and young people with special educational needs and
disability. This includes a new Code of Practice which was re issued in January
2015.

4.

The Children and Families Act 2014 has major implications for how the NHS
commissioners and Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) organise and deliver
services to children and young people who have a Special Education Need and/or
Disability between the ages of 0 and 25. It has reformed the system of support
across education, health and social care to ensure that services are organised with
the needs and preferences of the child and their family firmly at the centre, from birth
to the transition to adulthood.

5.

It is expected that all partners will work together to deliver a person-centred approach
through:
• Education, Health and Care (EHC) plans and assessment processes;
• A Local Offer;
• Personal Budgets offered in EHC plans;
• Mediation and dispute resolution arrangements;
• Joint commissioning arrangements.

6.

Included is the requirement for CCGs to:
• Commission services jointly for children and young people (up to 25) with SEND,
including those with EHC plans;
• Work with the local authority to contribute to the Local Offer services available;

38
•
•

Have mechanisms in place to ensure practitioners and clinicians will support the
integrated EHC needs assessment processes;
Agree Personal Budgets where they are provided for those with EHC plans.

7.

At the meetings on 13 March 2014 and 22 January 2015, the Health and Wellbeing
Board received papers which provided information about the Children and Families
Act and within it, the revised Code of Practice for Special Educational Needs and
Disability.

8.

At the meeting on 15 March 2015 the Health and Wellbeing Board agreed to consider
the key questions outlined in the Department of Health’s guidance. It was agreed
that a focus group of representatives would meet to discuss the Board’s response to
the questions. This group met on 2 June 2015.

Background
9.

Leicestershire places a high priority on improving the outcomes and raising
aspirations for all children and young people aged 0-25 with special educational
needs and disability. In line with national statistics, 16.25% of Leicestershire children
of school age have a special educational need, compared to 17.9% nationally of
school age children and young people are identified as having a special educational
need and/or disability. The vision for all children is that they live in safe and thriving
communities where they enjoy good health and wellbeing and achieve their potential.

10. Locally, the reform has been planned in two phases with an implementation time of
three years to 2018. Phase one focused on meeting the initial milestones for
September 2014. These were met in Leicestershire and this was reported to the
Board in January 2015. Phase two is a longer period of time focusing on the cultural
shift which underpins the reform. Fundamental to the success is the joint
commissioning and accountability of health, education and social care professionals
at strategic and operational level.
11. Across this group of young people 0-25 there is a diverse range of health needs,
which include children and young people with long term health conditions, children
and young people with autism, children and young people with sensory impairments
and children and young people with mental health issues. It also includes children
and young people with multiple and complex needs who may be dependent on
technology, children and young people with behaviour that challenges and children
and young people with a life-threatening or life-limiting condition.
12. Meeting these health needs requires a range of different health services. The
emphasis is to create a system whereby integrated services for children, support
them to make decisions about their own care or adequately support them during the
transition to adult services.
Current Position
Internal Audit of SEND reform
13. An internal audit was carried out in April 2015. The audit concluded that substantial
assurance can be given that the key elements of SEND reform were on track. The
main points raised were:

39

a. The local offer has been development in accordance with the core information
as set out in the Code of Practice. Further work is now underway to develop a
more user friendly website and to link this with the online project for the County
Council website.
b. The conversion of Education, Health and Care plans is on track and these have
been positively received by children and families. Work is underway to ensure
that contributions from health and social care partners are received promptly.
This was highlighted as a concern in feedback from Leicestershire Family Voice
as part of the audit process.
c. There has been limited progress with the development of personal budgets.
More recently there has been financial modelling to consider ways in which
social care and education budgets can be more aligned. The NHS is developing
a personal budget offer.
14.

Recommendations and a management action plan have been agreed with the
following priorities:
a. The ‘local offer’ should be subject to continuous development and take account
of regular feedback from users.
b. At the earliest opportunity, a nominated officer from the business should be
given responsibility for the maintenance, continuous review / update of the local
offer / web-pages.
c. Ensure that communication with children and families is widely distributed in a
range of formats
d. Review eligibility criteria to ensure these are in line with the new Code of
Practice and approach to assessment.
e. Ensure that information from partners and other agencies is shared promptly
and contributes to an integrated assessment process.
f. Develop an approach to personal budgets to ensure that they fully comply with
the Code of Practice, Section 9.

Integrated working with health professionals (to cover joint commissioning strategy
and responses to questions)
15.

The Children and Families Act and SEND Code of Practice is explicit in requiring
local governance arrangements to be in place to ensure clear accountability for
commissioning services for children with special educational needs and disabilities
from birth to the age of 25. There must be clear decision making structures so that
partners can agree the changes that joint commissioning will bring in the design of
services. This will help ensure that joint commissioning is focused on achieving
agreed outcomes. Partners must also be clear about who is delivering what, who
the decision makers are in education, health and social care, and how partners will
hold each other to account in the event of a disagreement. The partners must be
able to make a decision on how they will meet the needs of children and young
people with special educational needs or disabilities.

16.

In respect of joint commissioning there are a number of areas that are being
progressed. Discussions have been taking place with the lead commissioner for the
Clinical Commissioning Groups and work has commenced on the development of a
framework for future joint commissioning. The framework will set out how services
will be planned and commissioned across the Council and the CCGs, based on

40
engagement and co-production with children, young people and families which have
influenced commissioning decisions.
17.

In addition to the framework, work to develop the joint commissioning strategy is in
train. A range of data which informs the needs assessment, is being drawn
together that will ensure that the needs of the population are clearly identified and
shared. This will help to define where there are gaps in service or lack of equity
across the county (services may not be available in some areas).

18.

The system to deliver personal health budgets for those children and young people
who have continuing health care has been agreed with colleagues in adult services
This will ensure consistency for young people who move into adult services.
Further work is now required in relation to broadening the offer of personal health
budgets and the links to the Education, Health and Care Plans. Once these signed
off by all relevant parties, the framework will act as the catalyst to fundamentally
change the way in which services are commissioned in the future for children and
young people with complex conditions or SEND. There remains work to do to
ensure that the education and social care elements of the budgets are fully
modelled and understood as part of this developmental process.

19.

At its meeting on 12th March 2015, the Health and Wellbeing Board requested that
an audit be undertaken to ensure that the CCGs and Leicestershire County Council
can evidence where and how they are working together in respect of the SEND
agenda. The audit should look to see what is working well, identify any issues and
ensure that there is a system in place to resolve them. A meeting took place on 2nd
June between lead commissioners from the CCG’s and officers from Children and
Family Services where the key questions were considered. In summary, the
findings were:
a. The Clinical Commissioning Groups have ensured that the SEND agenda is a
priority area and is reflected in all the CCG operating plans for 2015/16. Other
than the Joint Health and Wellbeing strategy the Health and Wellbeing Board
does not have a specific policy statement relating to SEND reform
http://www.westleicestershireccg.nhs.uk/page/operational-plan
http://www.eastleicestershireandrutlandccg.nhs.uk/our-strategies-and-plans
b. All of the plans and service developments for future commissioning are based
on the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA). The JSNA will inform the
joint decisions made for children and young people with SEN and disabilities,
which will, in turn, be reflected in the services set out in the local offer. This
work is led by the Public Health Department. Many of the children and young
people with SEND will be known to both agencies and as the needs assessment
is being refreshed, opportunities to use the intelligence to inform these plans
have never been more timely. The approach and format of the JSNA is need to
be revised and dataset sources revisited to ensure that the JSNA reflects
accurately this cohort of children with special educational needs and disability,
particularly those resident in Leicestershire.
c. Performance measures for services commissioned by the CCG are part of the
routine contract management framework. The providers are held to account in
respect of delivery and quality. Further discussion is needed to determine

41
whether or not these focus sufficiently on the needs of children with complex
needs.
d. Through the Better Care Together (BCT) Children and Families work stream, a
joint commissioning approach is focussing on children and young people with
learning difficulties (LD). However, the BCT agenda should take account of
young adults aged 18 to 25 which, by definition are beyond the criteria for
learning difficulties. This will ensure that there is join up across the system and
reduce duplication of effort as well as reducing the number of times children
young people and their families are consulted.
e. The NHS Planning Guidance, Forward View into Action requires that by April
2016 CCG’s must be in a position to offer a significant expansion of their
Personal Health Budget (PHB) offer. In addition pursuant to the Bubb Report
2014) the planning guidance states that PHB’s must be offered to people with
learning disabilities in order to facilitate them living in the community and avoid
out of area placements.
(http://www.england.nhs.uk/2014/11/26/learning-disabilities-action)
f. A specific Service Development and Improvement Plan (SDIP) has been agreed
with Leicester Partnership Trust that will allow for the implementation of PHB’s.
There is no additional money to offer PHB’s as it is a different way of utilising
current resources. As such contractual changes need to underpin a system that
allows money to be freed from existing contractual spend (e.g. LPT block
contract) and offered to children, young people and families through PHB’s.
Progression of this scheme is being overseen by the Family, Young People and
Children sub group.
g. The Health and Wellbeing Board has strategies for consulting children and their
families through Better Care Together and specific consultations by departments
and key partners.
Ofsted inspection of SEND reform
20. Edward Timpson MP, Children and Families Minister, has invited Ofsted to formally
inspect local areas on their effectiveness in fulfilling their new duties. They will do this
along with the Care Quality Commission (CQC) and a local authority officer. This
request follows the advice provided to the Department for Education by Ofsted on
local areas’ preparation for the disability and special educational needs reforms within
the Children and Families Act, 2014. The framework for this new inspection is
currently being developed and Ofsted and CQC are currently speaking with a wide
range of stakeholders. The intention is to focus on how local areas:
a. monitor improved outcomes and experiences for children, young people and
their families
b. show how the SEND system is performing
c. hold partners to account
d. support self-improvement
21. The Health and Wellbeing Board should specifically note that this is an inspection of
the ‘local area’. The majority of statutory duties in relation to SEND rest
predominantly with local authorities but now also with Clinical Commissioning Groups
(CCGs). As the principal responsibility for delivery is held in local areas, OFSTED

42
plans to work with relevant partners and wider stakeholders to develop a set of
agreed success measures to support local accountability. In particular, OFSTED
intend to inspect local areas as to how they are:
a. collecting feedback from children, young people and their families and using this
to improve services and delivery;
b. using data and intelligence to measure progress and success;
c. working with other local areas to identify issues or trends and to learn from each
other.
22. The proposed arrangements for the inspection are as follows:
a. All local areas will be inspected, with an inspection interval of up to five years.
b. Inspection teams will include a HMI, a CQC inspector and a local authority
inspector.
c. There will be re-inspection activity where this is appropriate.
d. Inspectors will review available national data as part of their preparation,
including within area inspection outcomes from CQC and Ofsted.
e. The field work is likely to include discussions with elected members, key local
area officers from health, education and social care, and meetings with leaders
of early year settings, schools and colleges.
f. Visits will be made to a range of providers. These visits will not inspect the
provision but focus on the effectiveness of the area’s arrangements.
g. As appropriate the findings of the area inspection will contribute to other CQC
and Ofsted inspection activity.
23. Although for details regarding the OFSTED inspection framework are yet to be
finalised, it is clear that a successful inspection will depend upon the integrated
approach and shared accountability of education, health and social care
professionals. It will be important to ensure that representatives from all three
professional groups attend training and briefings leading to the implementation of the
framework.
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/416347/Accountability_Publication.pdf

Consultation/Patient and Public Involvement
24. Listening to children and families is at the heart of SEND reform. There has been
good engagement with the parents and carers forum, for example in co-producing
the one page profile/SEND support plans that are the basis of an Education, Health
and Care plan. The next step is to commission Leicestershire Family Voice for
additional activity to enhance co-production and establish a network of SEND
voluntary groups.
Resource Implications
25. SEND reform is supported by an implementation grant totalling £1,598,477. This has
been used to establish a project team and workforce development programme. The
SEND reform brings with it additional burdens for which no additional resource has
been identified in council or direct schools grant funding. The SEND project is
timetabled to conclude on 31st March 2016, at which point these additional burdens
will be part of business as normal operating across education social care and health
services. The project team is now looking at a plan for transition to business as usual
by March 2016.

43
26. The project has been successful in a number of areas becoming business as normal,
particularly the conversion of statements of educational need to education, health and
care plans. The local offer and SEND dataset are in a position to move to business
as usual with resources allocated accordingly.
Conclusions/Recommendations
27. SEND reform continues to progress well and there has been increased engagement
between education, health and social care professionals over the key issues of joint
commissioning and personal budgets. The Health and Wellbeing Board will need
assurance that this progress continues to create the cultural shift which is
fundamental to the success of reform and that operational and strategic plans by
CCG’s and the local authority give the priority to SEND reform as expected in the
Children and Families Act 2014.
Background papers
SEND Code of Practice
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/send-code-of-practice-0-to-25

DoH guidance Doc
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/357447/DH_HWB_children_s_guidance.pdf

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/send-guide-for-health-professionals

DfE guidance
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/send-guide-for-social-care-professionals

OFSTED guidance
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/416347/Accountability_Publication.pdf

Officer to Contact
Gillian Weston, Assistant Director – Education, Learning and Skills
Telephone: 0116 305 7813
Email: gillian.weston@leics.gov.uk
Chris Bristow, Head of Strategy, SEND Reform
Telephone: 0116 305 6767
Email: chris.bristow@leics.gov.uk

44
Relevant Impact Assessments
Equality and Human Rights Implications
28. This paper is for information and not requiring an impact assessment. However, the
right of children and young adults with special educational needs and /or disability
needs to be considered in full by commissioners to ensure their needs are taken into
account when determining commissioning priorities and plans to ensure there is no
direct or indirect discrimination.
Crime and Disorder Implications
29. The incidence of people with a disability, particularly those with learning difficulties or
mental health difficulties either being the victims of reported (and unreported crime is
significantly higher than average. Equally, those with disabilities report that they
experience barriers to accessing redress or support from the justice system.
Environmental Implications
30. The SEND reform focus on preparing for adulthood and specifically ‘independence’
and ‘relationships in the local community’ should enable adults with disability to
remain in their local community and therefore lower their carbon foot print.
Partnership Working and associated issues
31. The legal framework requires local authorities and their partner commissioning bodies
to develop joint arrangements for commissioning services to improve outcomes for 0
to 25-year-old children and young people who have special educational needs (SEN)
or disabilities, including those with Education Health and Care (EHC) plans. Section
25 of the Children and Families Act 2014 places a duty on local authorities that
should ensure integration between educational provision and training provision,
health and social care provision, where this will promote wellbeing and improve the
quality of provision for disabled young people and those with SEN. The Care Act
2014 requires local authorities to ensure co-operation between children’s and adults’
services to promote the integration of care and support with health services, so that
young adults are not left without care and support as they make the transition from
children’s to adult social care. Local authorities and clinical commissioning groups
must make joint commissioning arrangements for education, health and care
provision for children and young people with SEN or disabilities (Section 26 of the
Act). The term ‘partners’ refers to the local authority and its partner commissioning
bodies across education, health and social care provision for children and young
people with SEN or disabilities, including clinicians’ commissioning arrangements,
and NHS England for specialist health provision.

45

Agenda Item 9

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 16 JULY 2015
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH
2015 JOINT STRATEGFIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT REFRESH
Purpose of report
1.

The purpose of this report is to present the draft 2015 refresh of the Joint Strategic
Needs Assessment (JSNA) to the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) for its
comments and endorsement.

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions
2.

The JSNA is a statutory duty of the Health and Wellbeing Board, set out in the Health
and Social Care Act 2012. Local authorities and clinical commissioning groups
(CCGs) have equal and joint duties to prepare JSNAs and Joint Health and
Wellbeing Strategies, through the health and wellbeing board. The responsibility falls
on the health and wellbeing board as a whole and so success will depend upon all
members working together throughout the process

3.

The last JSNA for Leicestershire was published by the Shadow Health and Wellbeing
Board in 2012. It formed the underpinning evidence base for Leicestershire’s JHWS
and is the foundation of the Better Care Together (BCT) Five Year Strategy.

4.

The JHWS was developed as a three year strategy for Leicestershire, running from
2013-2016. It is necessary to review the JHWS and this has driven the need to
refresh the JSNA evidence base.

Background
5.

JSNAs analyse the health needs of populations to inform and guide commissioning
of health, wellbeing and social care services within local authority areas. The JSNA
underpins the health and wellbeing strategy and commissioning plans. The main goal
of a JSNA is to accurately assess the health needs of a local population in order to
improve the physical and mental health and well-being of individuals and
communities and to act as the overarching evidence base for health and wellbeing
boards to decide on key local health and social care priorities.

6.

Leicestershire’s JSNA is overseen by the JSNA/ JHWS Steering Board. This is a
sub-committee of the Health and Wellbeing Board and its Terms of Reference and
membership are available from the JSNA webpages.

7.

The 2015 JSNA refresh has focussed on making a wide range of health needs data
available to the wider health and care partnership through a series of web based
interactive dashboards.

46

8.

In addition to the dashboards, the key themes from the JSNA have been summarised
into a detailed report which includes a review of the 2012 JSNA and the progress that
has been made in all the priority areas highlighted in the 2012 JSNA.

9.

This executive summary identifies the key challenges facing the population of
Leicestershire with respect to their ongoing health and wellbeing needs in the future.
The JSNA takes a long term view of the drivers of health needs, this is in response to
the development of the Better Care Together Strategy which sets out our plans to
address the system wide health and wellbeing needs over the next five years. By
looking at the longer term needs of the population it draws attention to the main risks
to the long term needs of the population to enable more effective long range planning
for the population.

Proposals/Options
10. The 2012 JSNA aspiration was to add quality and years to life. It has been
demonstrated through the JSNA refresh that this has been delivered, though
increases in life expectancy and healthy life expectancy. Significant progress has
been made in all of the priority areas identified in the 2012 JSNA.
11. However, the ageing population continues to grow. As more people become older
there will be a corresponding increase in the number of people affected by long term
illnesses such as heart disease, diabetes and respiratory diseases. Many older
people will have more than one long term illness and will need care and support to
manage their conditions and to help them to retain their independence.
12. The JSNA predicts a rise of 190% in people aged 85 years and over between 2012
and 2037, and a rise of 56% in people aged between 65 and 84 years. It is predicting
a shrinkage of 2% in the working age adult population. This gives a series of key
messages in the JSNA that are similar to the 2012 JSNA but with a greater emphasis
on prevention and the need to change services to promote health and independence
through the life course, with an aim to have a healthy older population.
13. The NHS forward plan is clear that now is the time to get serious about prevention:
“if the nation fails to get serious about prevention then recent progress in healthy life
expectancies will stall, health inequalities will widen, and our ability to fund
beneficial new treatments will be crowded-out by the need to spend billions of
pounds on wholly avoidable illness.”
14. The JSNA has also identified a number of vulnerable populations who need to have
their specific needs met:
a. vulnerable children and families;
b. people with learning disabilities and/ or autism;
c. people with physical and sensory disabilities;
d. mental health;
e. people with long term conditions and cancer;
f. frail older people;
g. people affected by poverty; and
h. carers.

47

15. The JSNA also acknowledge the following key enablers that are essential to helping the
HWB to deliver sustained improvements in health and wellbeing for the population:
a. Communities;
b. Assets (both individual and community);
c. Housing;
d. Education;
e. Work;
f. Promoting independence; and
g. Supporting carers

Consultation/Patient and Public Involvement
16. The communications and engagement plan for the JSNA is attached in Appendix 2.
The JSNA has been to a number of key groups over the past four weeks and this has
helped to shape the draft JSN executive summary that is attached to this report.
Resource Implications
17. The JSNA Executive Summary is a needs assessment and on its own has no
resource implications. However, at a strategic level, the JSNA should shape all
decisions about future investment and disinvestment across the health and social
care system.
Timetable for Decisions
18. The JSNA will be published in the autumn 2015 and will form the evidence base for a
refreshed Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy in 2016.
Conclusions/Recommendations
19. The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to:
a. review the attached executive summary
b. provide feedback on the themes presented in the executive summary
c. endorse the attached executive summary subject to the inclusion of feedback
from the Health and Wellbeing Board

Officer to Contact
Mike Sandys, Director of Public Health
Telephone: 0116 3054239
Email:
mike.sandys@leics.gov.uk
List of Appendices
Appendix 1 – Draft 2015 JSNA Executive Summary
Appendix 2 – JSNA communications and engagement plan

48
Relevant Impact Assessments
Equality and Human Rights Implications
20. The JSNA provides an evidence base across the whole population of Leicestershire
and, where possible, highlights inequalities issues. The final JSNA will be
accompanied by an equalities statement setting out in detail the inequalities issues
identified in the needs assessment.

Partnership Working and associated issues
21. The JSNA is a partnership document produced in collaboration by a sub-committee
of the Health and Wellbeing Board. Representatives are included from adults,
children’s, public health, CCGs, districts, housing, Healthwatch and Voluntary Action
Leicestershire.

49

JSNA EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
2015

LEICESTERSHIRE

Page 1

50

Version 1.1
2nd June 2015

For more information please contact:

Public Health Department
Leicestershire County Council
0116 3050705
phi@leics.gov.uk

Page 2

51

Background
Joint strategic needs assessments (JSNAs) analyse the health needs of populations
to inform and guide commissioning of health, wellbeing and social care services
within local authority areas. The JSNA underpins the health and wellbeing strategy
and commissioning plans. The main goal of a JSNA is to accurately assess the
health needs of a local population in order to improve the physical and mental health
and well-being of individuals and communities and to act as the overarching
evidence base for health and wellbeing boards to decide on key local health and
social care priorities.
Within the JSNA we are using the term health in its widest sense, as defined by the
World Health Organisation:1
“Health is a state of complete physical, mental and social wellbeing and not
merely the absence of disease or infirmity.”
Leicestershire’s JSNA is overseen by the JSNA/ JHWS Steering Board. This is a
sub-committee of the Health and Wellbeing Board and their Terms of Reference and
membership are available from the JSNA webpages.
Figure 1: The JSNA in the context of the Health and Wellbeing Board

Page 3

52

The JSNA has been developed from a detailed evidence base that is available in a
number of data dashboards accessible from our JSNA website.
www.lsr-online.gov.uk/xxxxxxxx
These dashboards have been described in a more detailed report that looks at our
population health needs and what we are doing to meet these needs. The report also
looks at the key issues facing our population in the future. The key themes have
been summarised in this executive summary.

The 2012 JSNA
Our JSNA in 2012 is illustrated in Figure 2 which demonstrates that the key health
issues for Leicestershire were: giving children the best start in life, managing the shift
to early intervention and prevention and supporting the ageing population. Mental
health and targeting the communities with the greatest needs were identified as key
themes running across the whole life course .This led us to develop our Joint Health
and Wellbeing Strategy to underpin our central themes of:
Page 4

53

•

adding quality and years to life;

•

addressing needs effectively through the life course

•

targeting communities with the greatest needs; and

•

a specific focus on mental health needs.

Figure 2: 2012 JSNA

In February 2015, the Health and Wellbeing Board agreed to include learning
disabilities as an additional strategic priority. This is detailed in the report, “Update of
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2013-16.”2The detail of the priority is included in
Leicestershire’s Health and Wellbeing Board Annual report 2014 which identifies a
number of key priorities for learning disabilities, to ensure we understand this
population and have effective support available to keep this vulnerable population
safe.3
Page 5

54

The 2015 JSNA shows us that we have made really effective progress in improving
the overall health needs of our populations. The infographics on pages xx to xx
highlight the key health indicators for our populations and include an indicator of
whether we are improving in these key areas.
With regards to our overarching goals to “add quality and years to life”, life
expectancy continues to improve year on year and in the 10 year period from 20002002 to 2010-2012 there has been an increase in life expectancy of 2.4 years for
men and 2.2 years for women, an increase of about 2 months per year. Life
expectancy in Leicestershire is significantly better than the England average for both
males and females at 80.1 years and 84.0 years respectively.
Figure 3: Life Expectancy at Birth

Life Expectancy at Birth 2000-02 - 2010-12
86

84

Life Expectancy in years

82

80
Leics Males
Leics Females

78

England Males
England Females
76

74

72

70
2000 - 02

2001 - 03

2002 - 04

2003 - 05

2004 - 06

2005 - 07

2006 - 08

2007 - 09

2008 - 10

2009 - 11

2010 - 12

Healthy life expectancy is illustrated in Figure 4. Healthy life expectancy is 64.9
years for males and 66.7 years for females. For both males and females, a
significant proportion of the population will already be affected by poor health before
they reach retirement age.
Figure 4: Healthy Life Expectancy

Page 6

55

Across the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland health and social care economy we
have set out our plans to work together to improve the immediate challenges and
needs facing our populations over the next five years in the Better Care Together
(BCT) Strategy.4 The data from the 2012 JSNA underpinned and informed the
development of this strategy and the 2015 JSNA brings this evidence more up to
date The key themes that we have identified from the 2015 JSNA are focused on
longer term planning – the ageing population is continuing to increase and we need
to do more as a system to prevent adults from developing preventable long term
conditions to ensure that we give everybody the greatest opportunity to a healthy
older age.

The 2015 JSNA Priorities
The most significant driver of health needs for the Leicestershire population is the
growing older population.
In 2013, the total population for Leicestershire was an estimated 661,600 people.
126,100 people were estimated to be 65 years and over, and 33,400 were 85 years
and over. 153,200 of the Leicestershire population are under 20 years of age.
Figure 5: Mid 2013 Population Estimates for Leicestershire

Page 7

56

2013 population – 661,600 people
Over 85 years – 33,400
Over 65 years – 126,100
0-19 years – 153,200
The population of Leicestershire is growing – between 2012 and 2037 (25 years) it
has been projected that the total population of Leicestershire will grow by 15% to
over 750,000. However, this growth is not uniform across the age groups with a
projected increase of:
•

190% increase in people aged 85 years and over

•

56% increase in people aged 65-84 years

•

7% increase in children and young people aged 0-24 years

•

A 2% decrease in the working age population (25-64 years)

Figure 6: 2012 Based Sub National Population Projections - 2012-2037 (ONS)

Page 8

57

800
700

Population (000's)

600
500
400
300
200
100
0

Year
< 25 yrs Leicestershire

25 - 64 yrs Leicestershire

65 - 84 yrs Leicestershire

>= 85 yrs Leicestershire

The total population is predicted to grow by 15%.
85 years + growth 190%, 15,900 to 45,600 people.
65-84 growth 56%, 106,000 to 164.900 people.
0-24 growth 7%, 194,800 to 208,800 people.
Adult population 25-64 reduce by 2% from 339,900 people to 333,900 people.

The 25 year time frame that we are looking at is important. The Better Care Together
Strategy 2014-19, published in June 2014, is a 5 year strategic plan for Leicester,
Leicestershire and Rutland.4 The BCT Strategy covers eight overarching service
models - each reflecting the current situation and desired outcomes in five years’
time, identifying how change will be made. These are:
• urgent care;
• frail and older people;
• long term conditions;
• planned care;
• maternity and new born services;
• children’s services;
• mental health; and
Page 9

58

• learning disabilities.
Through the Better Care Together 5 year strategy we have identified the changes
that we need to make for the health and social care system to work more effectively
in the immediate future. However, there is a need to consider the longer term care
needs for our populations. With our ageing population, we need to consider the plans
that need to be put in place to manage future health and care needs and demands in
the longer term, with a focus on reducing preventable ill health, particularly in
working age adults.
Our population is living longer than ever before. For males, the most frequent age of
death in Leicestershire is 80-84 years, with 19% of male deaths occurring in this age
group. Overall, 64% of deaths in males are to people over 75 years of age and 83%
are to people aged over 65 years of age. For females, the most frequent age of
death in Leicestershire is over 90 years of age with 28% of female deaths occurring
in this age group. 77% of female deaths occur at over 75 years of age and 89% of
female deaths occur at over 65 years of age.
Figure 7: Deaths by Age Group in Leicestershire and England 2013

Page 10

59

Health needs increase with age. The 2011 Census data for Leicestershire shows us
that for people aged 85 years and over, only 15% of the population do not have their
activities of daily living limited (ADL) by a long term health problem or disability.
Nearly a third of this age group have their ADL limited a little and over a half have
their ADL limited a lot. There is a clear correlation with age and as people become
older their care needs linked to ADL increase. In terms of absolute numbers, the
population with the highest number of people with ADL limited either a little or a lot is
the population aged 55-64 years, affecting over 23,000 people. Understanding the
population that have health and care needs linked to ADL is a useful way to target
our preventative services to reduce longer term dependency on services.
Figure 8: Long term health problem or disability by age for Leicestershire, 2011

The increasing older population will drive an increase in the number of people
affected by frailty. This is illustrated in Figure 9 which applies an estimate of between
10-11% of the population aged 65 years and over affected by frailty, estimating the
number of people in Leicestershire that are affected by frailty as between 12,200 and
13,400 in 2012 and between 21,100 and 23,200 people in 2037.
Figure 9: Estimates of Frailty in Leicestershire

Page 11

60

The population growth patterns have implications for the provision of services for
older people. There will be more older people with complex care needs who will
require input from all parts of the health and social care system. This will need to be
supported by people providing unpaid care through informal caring arrangements.
However, the reduction in working age adults suggests that, as well as planning for
the increased needs for services there is a long term need to consider the
infrastructure needed locally to support people. Carers will become increasingly
significant to the wider health and care system and we will need to ensure that their
health and wellbeing needs are addressed. This will be essential to maintaining
independence and to support people to manage their own health and care needs
with a shrinking network of informal care and support.
The real challenges facing the health and social care community is linked to planning
for this future population growth and a need to really start to focus on longer term
planning and prevention of ill health in this growing older population. The NHS
forward plan states:
“if the nation fails to get serious about prevention then recent progress in
healthy life expectancies will stall, health inequalities will widen, and our ability
to fund beneficial new treatments will be crowded-out by the need to spend
billions of pounds on wholly avoidable illness.”
The Health and Wellbeing Board need to adopt a model of preventing, reducing and
delaying need across the whole life course. This starts with building community
capacity to empower people and communities to manage their own health and
Page 12

61

wellbeing needs across the life course and ends with having the right care and
support in place to meet peoples treatment and longer term care needs.
Figure 10: Prevent, reduce, delay

Prevent – this is primary prevention of ill health and disability in people who do not
currently have care or support needs. This is providing universal services to ensure
that people have access to good information and advice, are able to live healthy and
active lives, live in safe neighbourhoods and have good social networks to help to
support them.
Reduce – this is a tier of secondary prevention or early interventions. Providing
targeted interventions to individuals with increased risk of developing a need for
services and where service provision may prevent people from deteriorating and
needing to use services.
Delay – this is a tier of tertiary prevention, which is aimed at minimising the effect of
disability or deterioration for people with established health conditions.
Provision of long term care - as well as people that fall into the categories of need
where interventions can prevent, reduce or delay the need for support services or
treatment, there will also be a cohort of patients where these strategies will not be
effective who will need long term services and support. This cohort of people may
still benefit from preventative approaches including universal services, and
Page 13

62

opportunities to minimise use of long term services and support should continue to
be utilised.
Implementation of the prevent/ reduce/ delay model will ensure that we start to make
the changes that we need across the life course to deliver a fundamental shift in
services that we provide for our population from treatment services to prevention
services.
The wider determinants of health
Health inequalities reflect the inequalities that exist across the whole of society.
Between 2010 and 2012, the gap in life expectancy between the most deprived
areas and the least deprived areas in Leicestershire was 6.1 years for males and 5.2
years for females.
An individual’s health and wellbeing is influenced by a wide range of social,
economic and environmental factors such as good housing, a good education, a
fulfilling job and the personal relationships that people have. This means that the
opportunities to improve the health for everybody in Leicestershire will come from the
collective efforts of all parts of society.
In 1991, Dahlgren and Whitehead published a model of the main influences on
health and wellbeing (Figure 11).6 The basis of the model is the concept that some of
the factors that influence health are fixed and others can be influenced. Personal
characteristics, such as age, sex and ethnicity, are highly significant for health but
cannot be influenced, and therefore sit at the core of the model.

Figure 11: The Determinants of Health

Source: Dahlgren and Whitehead 1992

Page 14

63

Individual lifestyle factors are behaviours such as smoking, alcohol and other
substance misuse, poor diet or lack of physical activity. These have a significant
impact on an individual’s health. Influencing this section of the model is key to a long
term, sustainable health and wellbeing economy.
Social and community networks are our family, friends and the wider social circles
around us. Social and community networks are a protective factor in terms of health.
Living and working conditions include access to education, training and employment,
health, welfare services, housing, public transport and amenities. It also includes
facilities like running water and sanitation, and having access to essential goods like
food, clothing and fuel.
General socio-economic, cultural and environmental conditions include social,
cultural, economic and environmental factors that impact on health and wellbeing
such as wages, disposable income and availability of work.
This 2015 Director of Public Health’s Annual Report reviewed the wider influences
on health and is accessible from LSR-Online.5
Targeting people with increased needs
The JSNA has set out the key priorities for the whole population with respect to the
long term pressures on health and social care. As well as the long term demographic
change there are populations that are more vulnerable and have increased care
needs and the priority populations that have been identified across Leicestershire
are:
•

vulnerable children and families;

•

people with learning disabilities and/ or autism;

•

people with physical and sensory disabilities;

•

mental health;

•

people with long term conditions and cancer;

•

frail older people;

•

people affected by poverty; and

•

carers.

Page 15

64

In addition to recognising the increased needs of our vulnerable populations, we
need to ensure that services are commissioned in a way that recognises and
addresses inequalities in health. It is important at a whole Leicestershire level to
understand the needs of people that are driven by wider social inequalities such as
poverty. It is also important that the needs of communities within Leicestershire are
understood and the role of population groups on health inequalities is understood
and tackled through the services that we commission. All commissioning decisions
and service plans need to reflect the requirements of the Equality Act and Human
Rights legislation. We need to make the most of opportunities to identify and
intervene early with population groups at risk, through strong partnership working
and community involvement.
Enablers
There are a number of key partners and priority areas that will help the wider health
and wellbeing partnership deliver improved outcomes for the population. These
include:
•

communities;

•

assets (both individual and community);

•

housing;

•

education;

•

work;

•

promoting independence; and

•

supporting carers.

Page 16

65

The 2015 JSNA on a page
Children

Transitioning to adulthood

Working age adults

Ageing

Investing in children gives
greatest overall return

Vulnerable children and
children with health and social
care needs are particularly
vulnerable when they become
adults. Consistent support
needs to be in place for the
young person and their family
as they move into adult
services.

Prevention in this
population is essential for
a healthy older population

Early identification and
support for people who are
at risk of developing health
and social care needs

Addressing the wider
determinants of health with a
focus on educational attainment
Development of the healthy
child programme for 0-19s
Meeting the needs of
vulnerable children, including
children at risk of child sexual
exploitation
Supporting children with
Special Educational Needs and
Disabilities
Addressing mental health
needs of children

Lifestyle behaviours – 16-24
year olds are particularly
vulnerable to risky lifestyle
behaviours such as sexual
health, substance misuse and
smoking.
Wider determinants of health
including young people who are
NEET and young offenders

Continue to reduce
premature mortality from
the major causes of ill
health
Reduce inequalities in
health across the social
gradient
Reduce the preventable
risks to health through
people’s lifestyle choices
Maximising independence
for those with long term
and/ or complex needs

Support for young carers

Targeting people with
increased needs:
vulnerable
families;

children

Supporting people at the
end of their life
Supporting more people to
look after themselves after
illness or injury through
reablement services
Planning for the future,
including future housing
needs, developing
community assets,
planning for emergencies

Communities;
and

Assets (both individual and
community);
Housing;
Education;
Work;

and

Promoting independence;
and

mental health;
people
with
long
conditions and cancer;

Supporting older carers

Enablers:

people with learning disabilities
and/ or autism;
people with physical
sensory disabilities;

More development of the
evidence base around
prevention for older people

Supporting carers.
term

frail older people;
people affected by poverty; and
carers.
Carers

Mental Health

Learning Disabilities

Carer support – through
implementation of carer support
pathway

Evaluation of newly
commissioned services

Increased support for people
in the local community

Improved awareness of
mental health and risk
factors

Improved recording of people
with learning disabilities and
sharing this information with
partners to ensure they get
the best care

Integrated support across
health and social care – early
identification of carers needs
and appropriate support

Improved dementia
diagnosis and support

Ensuring that people have
access to effective services
that are tailored to meet their
individual needs
Equity of access to all
services for this population

Page 17

Physical and Sensory
Disabilities
Improve independence for
people with physical
disabilities through the use
of aids and adaptations in
the home
Building of community
capacity to support people
with disabilities living in the
community
Improved access to
services for people with
sensory disabilities

66

Page 18

67

Page 19

68

Page 20

69

Page 21

70

Page 22

71

References
1.

World Health Organisation. Preamble to the Constitution of the World Health Organization as
adopted by the International Health Conference, New York, 19-22 June, 1946, signed on 22
July 1946 by the representatives of 61 States (Official Records of the World Health
Organization, no. (1948). at <http://www.who.int/about/definition/en/print.html>

2.

Leicestershire County Council. Leicestershire Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy January
2015 Update of Joint Health and WEllbeing Strategy 2013-16. (2015). at <http://www.lsronline.org/uploads/jhws-refresh-201516.pdf>

3.

Leicestershire County Council. Leicestershire Health and Wellbeing Board Annual Report.
(2014). at <http://www.lsr-online.org/reports/787800>

4.

Better Care Together A Partnership of Leicester Leicestershire and Rutland Health and Social
Care. Better Care Together Plan 2014. (2014). at
<http://www.bettercareleicester.nhs.uk/information-library/better-care-together-plan2014/>

5.

Director of Public Health & Leicestershire County Council. The 2014 Annual Report of the
Director of Public Health The wider determinants of health. (2014). at <http://www.lsronline.org/uploads/n0499-public-health-annual-report-2014.pdf>

6.

Dahlgren, G. & Whitehead, M. Policies and strategies to promote social equity in health.
(1991).

7.

Foot, J. What makes us healthy? The asset approach in practice: evidence, action, evaluation.
(2012).

Page 23

72

This page is intentionally left blank

73

APPENDIX 2
JSNA refresh communications and engagement plan - 2015
Background
The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) is the basis for determining the key
health and wellbeing challenges that are facing the population of Leicestershire.
The Health and Social Care Bill emphasises the importance of the JSNA as the
starting point for strategy development and commissioning decisions.
The Health and Wellbeing Board will oversee the refresh of the JSNA ready for
publication in September 2015.
This will inform the development of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy which
will underpin commissioning of health and social care between 2016 and 2019.
Scope
This plan outlines the overarching context, approach and key messages underpinning
communications for the JSNA refresh.
Audiences
Members
 All members
Governance / key stakeholders





Local
Clinical Commissioning Groups
Integration Executive
Staying Healthy Board
Substance Misuse Board
LLR Board for Health Protection
Better Care Together Board and substructures
Scrutiny
District/Borough HWBBs
Safeguarding boards







National
Department of Health
NHS England
Trust Development Agency
Health Protection Agency
Public Health England








Partners / stakeholders
 Parish councils
 Schools / FE providers
 Universities
 Leicestershire and Rutland Sport
Opinion formers and influencers
•
Local MPs
•
Professional networks
Communities
 Via Healthwatch
 Patient participation groups
 Community groups
 Voluntary sector leaders
 Sports clubs and associations
Harder to reach groups
 Equalities groups
 Older people
 Children
 Young people
 Families with children
 BME groups
 Rural community networks

Implementation plan
Timescale
11 June
16 June
24 June
29 June
7 July

Task / message
Discussion of JSNA Executive summary
Discussion of JSNA Executive summary
Discussion of JSNA Executive summary
Discussion of JSNA Executive summary
Discussion of JSNA Executive summary

3 July
7 July
7 July

Discussion of JSNA Executive summary
Discussion of JSNA Executive summary
Discussion of JSNA Executive summary

July

Draft JSNA Executive summary approved by HWBB

Distribute children’s chapter of JSNA for comment

11 September

Present draft JSNA for discussion

15 September
24 September

Discussion on children’s chapter of JSNA and Executive summary
Discuss JSNA and Executive summary
All Member briefing from Director of Public Health

Health and Wellbeing Board
MP’s
Healthwatch
Children’s Centres
Youth Offending - Young
People's Group
County Youth Council for
Leicestershire
Children in Care Council
Supporting Leicestershire
Families - Family Focus Meetings
Leicestershire Equalities Steering
Group
Children and Young Person’s Forum
Members

Activity / tool
Face to face
Face to face
Face to face
Face to face
Face to face

Responsible
Janine Dellar
Janine Dellar
Janine Dellar
Janine Dellar
Janine Dellar

Face to face
Face to face
Face to face

Janine Dellar
Mike Sandys
Janine Dellar

Letter from DPH

Mike Sandys

Stakeholder email

Ian Mellor

Face to face

Janine Dellar

Face to face
Face to face – Voice event

Ian Mellor

74

July / August

Audience
JSNA steering board
VAL
Health and care integration team
District housing leads
ELR CCG – Strategic Planning and
Commissioning Committee
Public Health DMT
West Leics CCG - Strategy Committee
District Health reps

Enter & View visit
Thursday 12 March 2015
10am-2pm

Ambulance Handover at
Leicester Royal Infirmary

75

Agenda Item 10

To observe the handover process in the
A&E Department at LRI

To observe the ambulances arriving and
departing from the six ambulances
__________________________

To observe the handover of patients from
the ambulance service to the hospital
__________________________

Purpose of the visit
___________________________

76

The longest delays in handovers occurred during
11.30am-12pm and 1pm-1.30pm.

From the data captured, there is a 50/50 split
for handover times to LRI, with 11 ambulance
crews handing over patients within 15 minutes
and 11 ambulance crews taking over 15 minutes.

Over the four-hour period, we observed 28
ambulances arriving on site and we collected
full data on 22 vehicles and had incomplete
data for six vehicles.

Handover and turnaround
observation
___________________________

77

• Ambulance crews raised concerns about access routes
inside the hospital and the problems they encounter
when transporting a patient to the hospital

• From the data captured there was a 50/50 split for handover times
to LRI

• We saw evidence of hospital staff working together within the ED
department

• We saw the attendant in charge of ambulance flow working
diligently to direct vehicles and guiding pedestrians for their safety

• We saw unauthorised vehicles using the same road as the
ambulances and causing obstructions to the Ambulance bays

• We saw evidence that having the ambulances and pedestrians using
the same area to access the hospital was chaotic

Summary of Findings
___________________________

78

The narrowness of the
passage behind the
ambulance bays – a
passage used by both the
public and the ambulance
staff transferring patients
from the vehicles to
hospital – results in the
interference of ambulance
staff carrying out their
duties.

There appears to be insufficient space
for taxis and vehicles to drop off/
pick up patients, which results in
tailbacks inhibiting incoming
ambulances.

(Ambulance crews) have to have eyes
in the backs of their heads due to
cars, taxis and particularly
pedestrians being all around them
when they are reversing into the bays
and especially when leaving on
emergency calls.

Additional observations
_________________________

79

80

This page is intentionally left blank

Health and Wellbeing Board
16th July 2015

Ambulance
Handovers

81

Agenda Item 11

EMAS (LLR) Red 2 and Pre-handover Performance
2014/15

82

EMAS (LLR) Red 2 and Pre-handover Performance
2015/16 (to 17/6/15)

83

EMAS (LLR) Red 2 and Pre-handover Performance
1/4/14 to 17/6/15

84

April
May
June
July
August
September
October
November
December
January
February
March

Month

R1 Performance
(Target 75%)
75.09%
69.26%
73.12%
65.93%
68.42%
70.19%
69.67%
65.35%
57.20%
67.23%
63.04%
71.70%

R2 Performance
(Target 75%)
76.38%
74.12%
75.30%
70.06%
73.65%
71.15%
70.83%
70.51%
56.96%
66.70%
66.45%
70.79%

R19 Performance
(Target 95%)
95.46%
94.43%
94.92%
92.25%
94.12%
93.07%
92.81%
92.62%
85.30%
90.46%
91.75%
93.28%

Pre-handover Average Lost Hours
(Target 15 mins)
0:23:36
802:36:39
0:25:19
996:21:59
0:21:21
612:52:09
0:20:33
572:35:18
0:20:49
592:05:09
0:22:39
743:42:11
0:26:07
1095:50:32
0:25:56
1064:47:39
0:30:50
1514:18:06
0:27:26
1153:16:31
0:29:13
1205:47:05
0:28:41
1322:13:32

EMAS (LLR) Monthly Red, Lost-hours and Prehandover Performance
2014/15

85

April
May
June
July
August
September
October
November
December
January
February
March
April
May
June

Month

R1 Performance
(Target 75%)
75.09%
69.26%
73.12%
65.93%
68.42%
70.19%
69.67%
65.35%
57.20%
67.23%
63.04%
71.70%
67.44%
78.00%
78.07%

R2 Performance
(Target 75%)
76.38%
74.12%
75.30%
70.06%
73.65%
71.15%
70.83%
70.51%
56.96%
66.70%
66.45%
70.79%
74.55%
74.87%
70.86%

R19 Performance
(Target 95%)
95.46%
94.43%
94.92%
92.25%
94.12%
93.07%
92.81%
92.62%
85.30%
90.46%
91.75%
93.28%
94.37%
94.00%
93.11%

Pre-handover Average Lost Hours
(Target 15 mins)
0:23:36
802:36:39
0:25:19
996:21:59
0:21:21
612:52:09
0:20:33
572:35:18
0:20:49
592:05:09
0:22:39
743:42:11
0:26:07
1095:50:32
0:25:56
1064:47:39
0:30:50
1514:18:06
0:27:26
1153:16:31
0:29:13
1205:47:05
0:28:41
1322:13:32
0:27:25
1153:34:06
0:26:36
1099:51:55
0:23:31
564:18:07

EMAS (LLR) Monthly Red, Lost-hours and Prehandover Performance
2014/15 and 2015/16 (to 17/6/15)

86

Exit Block

Increase in ED attendances .

Increase in Emergency Admissions to
UHL

Multiple patient pathways through
assessment bay

§

§

§

§

Ambulance Handover Turnaround
Delays - Why?

87

Working groups formed to develop a Standard
Operating Procedure within Assessment Bay
promoting a nurse led, streamline pit stop, within
15minutes.
EMAS arrival screens are now viewable so the
Emergency Department is aware of inbound activity
and can activate whole hospital response when
there is increased demand.

•

•

•

•

Working closely with EMAS and UHL Ambulance
Audit team to discuss and develop ways to capture
accurate data collaboratively, resulting in the role
out of CAD+. New data shows 1hr plus delays
dropped from 9.1% in May down to 2.2% in June.
15minute handover times has increased from 39% to
53% since CAD has been implemented.
30 – 60 minutes delays shows a 6.6% improvement

•

Moving forward together….

88

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Improved flow throughout the organisation .
Greater utilisation of ambulatory pathways
Multi agency in-reach to facilitate earlier discharge
Increased use of discharge lounge.
Speciality in –reach to ED .
Pilot of 1 hour GP Urgent ambulances to aid flow earlier in the day .
Improved Gold Command meetings 4 times a day
Continual communication with Halo

Moving forward together….

89

manner direct from the front door . This will
change the assessment process and be for
ambulances only .

Ensuring all patients get to the correct
destinations AMU/AAU/EDU in a timely

2. Changes in Front door Processes –

Phases Glenfield and AAU

3. Role out of CAD+ across UHL, Next

EMAS and UNIPART staff to discuss a joint
method of analysing the whole handover
process

1. Joint consultation with Senior UHL,

The future

90

91

Agenda Item 12

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 16 JULY 2015
REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF HEALTH AND CARE INTEGRATION
PROGRESS OF THE BETTER CARE FUND EMERGENCY ADMISSIONS
AVOIDANCE SCHEMES
Purpose of report
1.

The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the progress of the emergency
admissions avoidance schemes funded via the Leicestershire Better Care Fund and
actions being taken to improve their uptake and impact, following analysis of their
performance since January 2015

Link to Better Care Together
Workstream
Maternity, neonates,
children and young people

Relevance Workstream
Mental health

Long term conditions
Urgent care

Frail and older people
√

Learning disabilities
2.

Relevance

√

Planned care
End of life

The emergency admissions avoidance schemes are targeted primarily to frail, older
or vulnerable people and provide an alternative to hospital admission.

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions
3.

The four emergency admissions avoidance schemes were approved for
implementation as an integral part of the Leicestershire Better Care Fund submission
in September 2014.

Background
4.

The four schemes have now been up and running for 6 months and the first national
quarterly return was made to NHS England on May 29th. As reported to the Health
and Wellbeing Board at the May meeting, the local health and care economy
continues to over perform in terms of the total number of emergency admissions. In
terms of the 4 emergency admissions avoidance schemes within the county,
considerable progress has been made with approx. 424 admissions estimated to
have been avoided in the period January – March. However all 4 schemes have the
ability to perform at a higher level and need to do so in order to avoid 2,041
admissions in total during 2015.

92
Proposals/Options
5.

A multiagency workshop was held on 14th May where the performance and
operational delivery of the 4 schemes was reviewed in depth. Remaining barriers to
optimising referrals into the schemes, and the care pathways within the schemes
were discussed and operational solutions proposed. The workshop included the
essential input of providers such as East Midlands Ambulance Service (EMAS),
University Hospitals of Leicester (UHL) and Leicestershire Partnership Trust (LPT).

6.

In June a further workshop was held between operational staff from the emergency
department at UHL and the community nursing services within LPT to follow up
specifically on how to improve coordination and communication between the
respective teams to ensure admissions are avoided wherever possible.

7.

The group considered how referrals from within the emergency department could be
made direct into the alternatives, for example into the night nursing element of the
integrated crisis response service and into the frail older people’s assessment
service.

8.

Further discussions have taken place with both clinical commissioning groups about
GP referral processes and levels of uptake across GP practices and localities.
Information is being tracked and fed back to practices to prompt discussion about
cases that would have been suitable for the alternatives, but resulted in an
emergency admission. There has also been sustained communications campaign
into GP practice about the alternatives.

9.

Appendix 1 to this report is the action plan that resulted from the work undertaken in
May and June and these are actions are now underway.

10. The impact of these activities is now being seen in that June’s data for the frail older
people’s assessment unit shows 48 cases were referred into the unit this month,
compared with 25 and 37 in April and May respectively.
11. The Urgent Care Board has also requested a full analysis of the emergency
admissions activity in the first part of 2015 across Leicester, Leicestershire and
Rutland. This will help all partners understand in more depth the categories of
patients that have been admitted during this period and what lies behind the total
emergency admission rate continuing to exceed the threshold that has been planned
for 2015. The output of this analysis is expected towards the end of July.
Resource Implications
12. The four emergency admissions schemes are already funded from within the Better
Care Fund Plan pooled budget. The actions being taken to improve performance
have incurred very minor additional costs (e.g. communications costs, and arranging
2 internally facilitated workshops). The action plan is primarily focused on using the
existing teams, resources and systems more effectively to gain maximum delivery.

93
Conclusions/Recommendations
13. The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to
a. Support the action plan, (the delivery of which is being overseen by the Integration
Executive on behalf of the HWB Board)
b. Provide any further challenge or feedback to direct the work to deliver 2,041
avoided admissions in 2015
c. Provide leadership to the efforts being made within respective organisations to
avoid admissions, through the maximum utilisation of the alternatives in the
community
Background papers
http://www.leics.gov.uk/healthwellbeingboard/bcfsubmission.htm

Officer to Contact Chery Davenport, Director of Health and Care Integration (joint appointment)
Telephone: 0116 305 4212
Email:
cheryl.davenport@leics.gov.uk

List of Appendices
Appendix 1 – Action Plan to improve the performance of the 4 emergency admissions
avoidance schemes
Relevant Impact Assessments
Equality and Human Rights Implications
14. Developments within the Better Care Fund Plan are subject to equality impact
assessment and the evidence base supporting the Better Care Fund Plan has been
tested with respect to Leicestershire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment.
Crime and Disorder Implications
N/A
Environmental Implications
N/A
Partnership Working and associated issues
15. The delivery of the four emergency admissions avoidance schemes rely on close
partnership working between commissioners and providers across the health and
care system which is supported operationally by the BCF operational group and
strategically b the Integration Executive and the Health and Wellbeing Board

94
Risk Assessment
16. The schemes contributing to the achievement of the reduction in emergency
admissions target did not achieve the required trajectory at the end of the first
reporting period and their performance continues to be below the trajectory as at the
end of May.
17. The Step Up/Step Down Programme Board have introduced an action plan which will
have dedicated project management resource to ensure all actions are in place to
improve performance of the schemes so they achieve their maximum impact within
2015.
18. If the completion of the national quarterly submission template highlights that we are
not satisfactorily meeting the metrics or national conditions for the Better Care Fund,
the plan could be escalated to the Department of Health depending on the identified
risk.
19. The escalation process ultimately leads to the ability for NHS England to use its
powers of intervention provided by the Care Act legislation in consultation with
Department of Health and Department of Communities and Local Government.

Better Care Fund Urgent Response Schemes Action Plan

Action
reference
number
LACK OF REFERRALS INTO THE OPU
Organisation

1

2

West Leicestershire
CCG & East
Leicestershire and
Rutland CCG, LPT, UHL

Improvement
Requirement

Open up direct referrals to the
OPU to key nursing homes

Improve EMAS divert to the OPU

Actions

Meet with all stakeholders to identify cohort of homes for pilot

Link with EMAS re changing status of OPU from Green to Amber
on the pathfinder tool.

Source of Action

Step Up Workshop (14/05/15)

Step Up Workshop (14/05/15)

3

Promote and raise greater
awareness of OPU with GP
Practices

Arrange slot at MDT meetings for first cohort of Practices

4

Promote links with AVS service
and OPU

AVS service visiting care homes to promote their service and raise
Step Up Workshop (14/05/15)
awareness of OPU and other admission avoidance schemes

5

Improve connectivity between the Ensure that ED professionals can make next day referrals in to the
Step Up Workshop (14/05/15)
OPU and ED
OPU service (also linked to connecting the service in a better way)
Ensure that Bed Bureau can book into the OPU directly

6

8
9
10

11
12

Establish Triage function in ED for
Workshop for all stakeholders to map a way forward
Older Person's Unit
Increase referrals into the service
and maximise capacity
Ensuring Medics at UHL are aware
of the service
Continued promotion with care
homes to raise awareness of the
OPU
Engagement and promotion of
services with EMAS to encourage
diverts
Information about the service
cascaded wider to UHL staff

DB/YS/SW

DB/AH

Delivery date

Jul-15

TBC

Delivery Status

Comments on delivery of the action, where closed what
follow up actions are required

4. On track

WLCCG - identified 4 care homes to initially work with. Awareness
raising/education of type of pts. took place during June. 3 homes agreed to be
involved. Fourth home requires additional support to encourage participation.
3 homes started referrals 1st July. Specialist Nursing Support Lead to follow-up
with the 3 homes in July.
ELRCCG are currently selecting 4 homes. Timings to be confirmed as staggered
start planned

5. Complete

Ongoing

4. On track

WLCCG - comms sent out to offer awareness raising to all localities to attend
individual practice meetings to promote the service. ANP will attend the
meetings. (Low take-up to date). Therefore additional information provided.
Awareness raising at July Federated Locality meetings continues (ANP invited
to attend NWL PLT on 8 July )
ELRCCG - Caroline Kirkpatrick contacted Primary Care Team to look at inviting
ANP to present at locality meetings. Dr Hurwood will assist CK at meetings.
OPU case studies to be included in next ELRCCG GP bulletin
WLCCG PLT (18 June) ANP had drop-in stand at session. Positive feedback
received.

DB/Simon Baker

Jun-15

5. Complete

WLCCG - AVS visited care homes to promote their service and also raised
awareness of the OPU to care home staff in order to 'prompt the doctor' on
GP ward rounds.

DB/Jane E/Amanda Cooper
(OPU)

Jun-15

5. Complete

A Workshop took place on 19 June to discuss a triage function from ED to OPU
and ICRS. Further actions are being taken forward.

TBC

1. Not yet commenced

DB

Step Up Workshop (14/05/15)

Jane E/RD/DB

ED Workshop (19/06/15)

DB/JE/Jane E/RD plus nursing
colleagues

Jun-15

5. Complete

DB/AC

Jul-15

4. On track

DB/JE/MI?

Jun-15

1. Not yet commenced

Primary Care Coordinators making next day appointments into the
ED Workshop (19/06/15)
OPU
Ensuring service information is part of the junior doctors
ED Workshop (19/06/15)
induction/info contained in briefing folders

AH confirmed that the OPU, along with UCC and WICs, sit in the amber
pathfinder level. The caveat to the process, is that the clinician can take the
patient to ED or vice versa as long as it can be clinically justified a recorded
why.
Process detailed in the revised EMAS paramedic pathfinder handbook.

Consultants direct bed bureau to refer patients into the OPU for the next day.
Mechanism to be agreed.
A Workshop took place on 19 June to discuss a triage function from ED to OPU
and ICRS. This included representation by LPT and UHL clinical staff from ED,
AMU, CDU, SPA, PCCs along with the 3 CCGs and Leicestershire County
Council. The actions agreed at the session by all stakeholders will form part of
a jointly owned action plan.
Service information to be cascaded to ED staff along with direct hot phone
number.
To be further discussed at an operational meeting (8/7/15)
ANP will be presenting to a Care Home stakeholder event taking place on 4th
August.

Open up direct referrals to the OPU to key nursing homes

ED Workshop (19/06/15)

DB/YS/SW

Jul-15

4. On track

DB and AC to work with Adrian Healey to ensure EMAS are
diverting appropriate referrals to the service.

ED Workshop (19/06/15)

DB/JE/AH

Jul-15

1. Not yet commenced

DB/JB

Jul-15

4. On track

ED Workshop (19/06/15)

DB/AC/CK

Jul-15

4. On track

SU SD meeting (09/04/15)
Frail Older Persons' Meeting
(02/07/15)

DB/Caroline Barclay

Oct-15

4. On track

Caroline Barclay to contact DB to release finance once agency therapy has
been sourced. An assessment of the outcomes and benefits of the service to
be provided after 3 months by LPT colleagues.

Step Up Workshop (14/05/15)

DB/JE/Jane E/RD plus nursing
colleagues

Jun-15

5. Complete

A Workshop took place on 19 June to discuss a triage function from ED to OPU
and ICRS. This included representation by LPT and UHL clinical staff from ED,
AMU, CDU, SPA, PCCs along with the 3 CCGs and Leicestershire County
Council. The actions agreed at the session by all stakeholders will form part of
a jointly owned action plan.

Step Up Workshop (14/05/15)

RD/Jane E

TBC

4. On track

Step Up Workshop (14/05/15)

RD/CW

TBC

1. Not yet commenced

ED Workshop (19/06/15)

CD/CR

Jun-15

5. Complete

ED Workshop (19/06/15)

DB/JE/MI?

Jul-15

1. Not yet commenced

Sharing of patient stories and case study examples with UHL staff ED Workshop (19/06/15)

13

DB, AC and CK to work together to share case studies; a service
Promotion of the OPU with EL&R
user experience and a clinician experience, along with a brief
CCG clinicians
resume of what the service offers

14

Physiotherapy and occupational
therapy input to the OPU

DB and Caroline Barclay to arrange a 3 month trial using agency
therapy support.

Meeting/workshop to be arranged to discuss EMAS diverts into admission
avoidance services
OPU case studies being shared with Michelle Izzard, Service Improvement
Manager
CK liaising with Clinical Chairs to gain agreement for AC to attend Locality
meetings to raise awareness of the service.
CK liaising with AC/DB for case studies with a view to sharing these in the EL&R
CCG GP Bulletin.

LACK OF REFERRALS INTO THE NIGHT NURSING SERVICE
14

15

16

West Leicestershire
CCG & East
Leicestershire and
Rutland CCG, LPT, UHL

V12

17
18

Establish Triage function in ED for
Workshop for all stakeholders to map a way forward
Enhanced Night Nursing Service
Establish Standard Operating
Procedure protocols to ensure
robust handover of patients.
Increase resource to the SPA
Provider Admin hub to ensure
"real time" feedback
Increase referrals into the service
and maximise capacity

Identify requirements
Training needs
Resource/funding
ED staff given SPA " back door number" to facilitate faster
referrals into the service

Streamline ED process during
patient handover

After patient assessment put sticker on patient handover file
between PCC and Medic to indicate recommended next steps

Work with all stakeholders to agree a set of SOP for handover of
patients to service.

To be further discussed at an operational meetings

UHL now added to option 2 of existing flow chart call options for SPA.
To be further discussed at an operational meeting (8/7/15)

95

7

Step Up Workshop (14/05/15)

Action lead within the
organisation

Better Care Fund Urgent Response Schemes Action Plan

Organisation

Action
reference
number

Improvement
Requirement

Actions

Raise awareness of SPA number
with colleagues in ED
Ensuring Medics at UHL are aware
of the service

Include SPA number on UHL Lanyard - with the strapline "patient
medically fit - benefit being at home"
Ensuring service information is part of the junior doctors
induction/info contained in briefing folders

21

Information about the service
cascaded wider to UHL staff

22

Engagement and promotion of
DB and AC to work with Adrian Healey to ensure EMAS are
services with EMAS to encourage
diverting appropriate referrals to the service.
diverts

19
20

Action lead within the
organisation

Source of Action

Delivery date

Delivery Status

Comments on delivery of the action, where closed what
follow up actions are required

ED Workshop (19/06/15)

DB/MI

Aug-15

1. Not yet commenced

To be further discussed at an operational meeting (8/7/15)

ED Workshop (19/06/15)

DB/MI

Jul-15

1. Not yet commenced

To be further discussed at an operational meeting (8/7/15)

Sharing of patient stories and case study examples with UHL staff ED Workshop (19/06/15)

DB/AC

Jul-15

4. On track

ED Workshop (19/06/15)

DB/JE/AH

Jul-15

1. Not yet commenced

Step Up Workshop (14/05/15)

?

Step Up Workshop (14/05/15)

DB/Lisa Carter

DB to share patient stories including the one about the lady who was
successfully transferred home and alerting we can do this via clinician to
clinician talk through SPA .
Meeting/workshop to be arranged to discuss EMAS diverts into admission
avoidance services

CONNECTING THE SYSTEM IN A BETTER WAY
23

As part of ED processes flag up
patients who are known to social
care and connect them to crisis
resolution services or part of the
PCC cohort.

TBC

Discussed interim option on 3 June that staff can ask if they are receiving any
professional help at home.

AVAILABILITY OF TECHNOLOGY IN AND OUT OF HOURS
24

Telehealth and telecare offered by
health and social care discharge
Link to LA AT equipment
services ( e.g. bed sensors to test
night wandering etc.)

AT workshop held on 26 June. Being led by Unified Prevention Board. Further
update to follow.

GP IT SYSTEMS - INTEROPERABILITY AND CONNECTIVITY
Review of whether can move all GP Practices on to one clinical
system (currently mix of EMIS and SystmOne practices)
25

System 1 and MIG enhancements. Implement an EPACCS system, the aim of which is to enable
Step Up Workshop (14/05/15)
sharing of care plan information between health care providers,
e.g. practices, community teams, UHL and EMAS, in a much more
safe and timely manner.

WLCCG would pursue any GP clinical system changes. Approval process and
lead to be confirmed.
DB/RB
EPACCS will span both LTC and EOL patients across LLR CCGs. This is a priority
for the LLR EOL working group. Jane Chapman is the SRO for the workstream.

96

V12

97

Agenda Item 13

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 16 JULY 2015
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND HEALTH
COMMISSIONING SUPPORT PERFORMANCE SERVICE
PERFORMANCE UPDATE AT END OF QUARTER 4 2014/15
Purpose of Report
1.

The purpose of the report is to provide the Board with an update on
performance against current performance priorities as set out in the Health
and Wellbeing Strategy and Commissioner Performance Frameworks, based
on data available at the end of quarter 4 2014/15.

Background
2.

The Board currently receives a joint report on performance from the County
Council’s Chief Executive’s Department and the Arden/GEM Commissioning
Support Performance Service. This report encompasses:
a. Performance against key metrics and priorities set out in the Better Care
Fund plan and with progressing health and social care integration.
b. An update on key provider performance issues and performance priorities
identified in Clinical Commissioning Group Plans.
c. An update on the delivery of priorities identified in the Joint Health and
Wellbeing Strategy and key areas of adult social care, public health and
children’s health services, using a variety of related performance
measures and targets.

Better Care Fund and Integration Projects
3.

The following section of the report summarises current performance against
the schemes within the Better Care Fund (BCF) plan. There is also a
summary of the BCF Plan key indicators and progress against delivering on
the BCF targets. Where data is not yet available for the metrics and proposed
targets the published baselines are shown.

Performance Against Current BCF Metrics – BCF Dashboard – Appendix A
4.

New data for metric 1 (permanent admissions to care/nursing homes – aged
65 and over), metric 2 (older people at home 91 days after discharge to
reablement/rehabilitation) and metric 3 (delayed transfers of care) are now
available and some commentary is set out below. Metric 4 (non-elective
admissions into hospital) is also covered below.

98

Admissions to Care and Nursing Homes
5.

Avoiding permanent placements in residential care homes is a good indication
of delaying dependency; research suggests where possible people prefer to
stay in their own home rather than move into residential care. There were
710.5 permanent admissions to either residential or nursing care of people
aged 65 and over per 100,000 population at the 2014/15 year end. The
current data shows an estimate of the full year figure for 2015/16. At 524.8
admissions per 100,000, this is forecast to meet the BCF target. (N.B.
Current issues with the statutory report for 2015/16 means an alternative
source data set has been used for the current forecast.

Older People At Home 91 Days After Discharge
6.

A key measure in the Better Care Fund (BCF) is the Adult Social Care
Outcomes Framework (ASCOF) metric that measures the proportion of
people discharged from hospital via reablement services that are still living at
home 91 days later. For those people discharged between December '14 and
February '15 and accommodation location between March and May '15 was
91.5% against the BCF target of 82% and is currently rated ‘green’. The
2014/15 year end figure of 83.5% also exceeded the BCF target.

Delayed Transfers of Care (DToC)
7.

The BCF metric is based on delayed days through the month and
cumulatively for each quarter against a set of quarterly targets. The quarterly
BCF target for Q1 of 2015/16 is 275.6 delayed days per 100,000 population.
The position in April was slightly higher at 289.2 although this is somewhat
lower than the position at the end of Q4, 2014/15 (364.7).

8.

An alternative method of monitoring delayed transfers of care is a snapshot
position on the last Thursday of each month. This is the method used in the
national Adults Social Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF). In April the data
shows that for ASC-only delays the number rose slightly from 9 in March to 11
in April. The NHS delays however saw a further drop, down to 37 in April
compared to a peak of 75 in the autumn

9.

UHL also report DToC delays based on the number of patients discharged as
a percentage of occupied bed days. There was very good progress with
DToCs in the second half of the year, reaching a record low of 1.8% in March
2015. The overall rate for the year was 3.9% compared to 4.1% in 2013/14
against a national target of 3.5%.

Emergency Admissions
10.

This is provisional data and subject to change. NHSE have confirmed they will
use the central Monthly Activity Return (MAR) to determine performance for
each Health and Wellbeing Board against the pay for performance target.
However, in line with the intent by NHSE to align the MAR and Secondary
Uses Service (SUS) during 2015/16, work has been undertaken using the

99

available SUS data to estimate overall performance against the pay for
performance metric.
11.

Data for the period January – April 2015 shows the health and care economy
in Leicestershire County continues to have a higher than targeted level of total
emergency admissions, despite the introduction of four emergency
admissions avoidance schemes.

12.

However the tables below show the total number of avoided admissions that
the four emergency admission avoidance schemes achieved against the pay
for performance target.

Monthly Performance
Monthly
Target
Actual avoided
admissions
Monthly
variance
against target

Jan
15

Feb
15

Mar
15

Apr
15

May
15

Jun
15

Jul
15

Aug
15

Sep
15

Oct
15

Nov
15

Dec
15

166

166

166

168

168

168

172

172

172

174

174

175

149

139

137

156

157

-17

-27

-29

-12

-11

Total Performance
Cumulative
Target
Cumulative
actual
avoided
admissions
Cumulative
variance
against target

Jan
15

Feb
15

Mar
15

Apr
15

May
15

Jun
15

Jul
15

Aug
15

Sep
15

Oct
15

Nov
15

Dec
15

166

332

498

666

834

1,002

1,174

1,346

1,518

1,692

1,866

2,041

149

288

425

581

738

-17

-44

-73

-85

-96

13.

There are a number of indicators in the NHS Outcomes Framework that relate
to avoidable emergency admissions. During 2014/15, for both West
Leicestershire CCG and East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG, admissions
were higher than in 2013/14. Reduction of emergency admissions is being
picked up as part of the Quality Improvement and Productivity Process (QIPP)
with providers through contractual arrangements.

14.

An audit was carried out by CAPITA in UHL. The first part of the audit was
around unplanned admissions and the second around a review of complex
coding. Feedback has been received from CAPITA that there are no major
concerns with regards to coding. UHL have a good process in place and are
following the pathways and identified some areas of good practice.

100

Emergency Admissions from Injuries Due to Falls
15.

Work continues to obtain actual data updates fully in line with the BCF
definition for metric 6 (injuries due to falls). In the meantime there are a
number of other proxy indicators in the NHS Outcomes Framework that relate
to emergency admissions.

Patient/Service User Experience
16.

The BCF metric covering patient/service user experience is derived from a GP
survey asking patients whether they have sufficient support from local
services/agencies to help manage their long term condition. The most recent
data, published in January 2015, shows 62% agreement, down slightly from
the baseline of 64.2%. Delivery of the improvement is therefore rated amber
at this stage.

Integration Project Delivery
17.

Within the current Better Care Fund scheme delivery progress updates, a
number of issues have been noted and these are set out below.

Scheme
Assistive
Technology
(AT)

Glenfield
Hospital
Admission
Avoidance
Bed Based
Reablement

Safe
Minimum
Transfer Data
Set

Commentary
Integration of AT within CRS and HART is already complete and
further integration with Leicestershire partners for a joint AT offer is
underway with the Unified Prevention Board (UPB) who were
running a workshop in June to look at the prospect for joint
interventions. An action plan for this will follow the workshop.
This scheme was put on hold in September due to a review of a
number of projects in UHL. A meeting is now being arranged to
take this project forward.
A review of the original residential reablement service is required to
ensure that outcomes are being delivered in line with the scheme’s
original expectations. The review will need to consider other
options that are available. Additional work has taken place
including the Oak Court and the Catherine Dalley pilots.
After a delayed start, the project continues to progress. Due to
progress being made, this scheme has been amended to amber.

Provider and CCG Dashboard - Appendix B
18.

Attached as Appendix B is a dashboard that summarises information on
provider and CCG performance. The Everyone Counts Dashboard sets out
the rights and pledges that patients are entitled to through the NHS. The
indicators within the dashboard are reported at CCG level. Data reported at
provider level does differ, and delivery actions indicate where this is a risk.

101

18 Weeks Referral to Treatment
19.

The referral to treatment (RTT) operational standards are 90% of admitted (to
hospital) and 95% of non-admitted patients (out-patients) should start
consultant-led treatment within 18 weeks of referral. In order to sustain
delivery of these standards 92% of patients who have not yet started
treatment (incompletes) should have been waiting no longer than 18 weeks.

20.

The year-end targets for non-admitted and incompletes was achieved in
2014/15, but admitted was not. Specialty level performance is being closely
monitored for all services with a focus on incompletes and clearance times to
sustain performance.

21.

Backlog volume increased during April (in part due to reduced capacity over
Easter and disruption in ENT capacity). Admitted performance is anticipated
to recover at aggregate level in May 2015. UHL are in the upper quartile of
provider trusts nationally for incomplete pathways. The majority of specialties
are delivering recovery plans as agreed, Orthopaedics, ENT and “Other”
(paediatric sub-specialties) are the exceptions and remain a risk for UHL.

Accident and Emergency (A&E) - 4 Hour Waiting Time (UHL)
22.

Across 2014/15, 88.7% of patients were seen within 4 hours in A&E against a
target of 95%. Activity remains on average at the same level, despite daily
fluctuations, however overall admissions have increased and are currently
12% above the 2013/14 position.

23.

The urgent care action plan has been updated to reflect actions to be
delivered over the next 3 months focusing on admission avoidance, UHL and
LPT flow and discharge. This was reviewed with the NHS regional team. The
Urgent Care Board meets fortnightly with the 4 work streams each reporting
once a month. A revised improvement plan is focusing on actions required
over the next 12 months but with a specific focus on 5 actions within each
workstream.

Cancer Waits – 2 Week Waits, 31 Day Waits, 31 Day Waits for Surgery, 62 day
waits from GP referral, screening services and consultant upgrade
24.

During 2014/15, there have been breaches of a number of cancer wait
standards for West Leicestershire CCG and East Leicestershire and Rutland
CCG. Performance issues with cancer waits include an increase in referrals
and the knock-on impact on 2 week waits, 31 day and 62 day performance.

25.

Cancer performance remains a concern for 31 days, 62 days and the 62 days
backlog. Performance continues to be monitored via the joint Cancer and RTT
Board. The 62 day performance recovery trajectories, although previously
agreed, are now being refreshed and discussed at the June Cancer RTT
Board. Recovery of the 62 day standard is likely to slip to September 2015.
Concern on the backlog in 62 day waits, especially Lung and Lower GI, mean
the Intensive Support Team will provide additional targeted cancer support

102

and are due to visit UHL in August 2015. The Cancer Board has now merged
with the RTT Board, this Board will continue to have executive level oversight
and meet on a monthly basis.
Cancelled Operations – Non Readmitted within 28 Days (UHL)
26.

In 2014/15, 95.9% of patients were seen against a target of 100%. This
equates to 44 patients across UHL and Alliance. UHL cancelled operations
continue to breach targets with one reported for March 2015. Though UHL
expect recovery in full against their action plan by the end of April 2015.

27.

Actions now in place include to review the booking process for any elective
stay requiring an Intensive Therapy Unit (ITU) bed in an attempt to negate
cancellations on the day. Causes of On-The-Day cancellations in March were
due to paediatric bed pressures and emergency/high priority admissions.

Mixed Sex Accommodation
28.

During 2014/15, there were 13 breaches at UHL. This equates to 4 episodes
in April, May, November and January. The January breach relates to a patient
on the High Dependency Unit (HDU) at Glenfield Hospital.

Safety Thermometer
29.

The NHS Safety Thermometer is a local improvement tool for measuring,
monitoring and analysing patient harms and “harm free” care. At March 2015,
UHL is reporting 94.1% against a target of 95% which remains in line with the
national position.

East Midlands Ambulance Service (EMAS)
Ambulance Response Times
30.

EMAS did not meet any of the 3 national ambulance response times by the
year-end 2014/15. Data at CCG level for 2014/15 is reported as follows:
•
•
•

Cat A Red 1 (8 minutes)
Cat A Red 2 (8 minutes)
Cat A (19 minutes)

– WL 63% and ELR 53.8% (Target 75%)
– WL 63% and ELR 56.5% (Target 75%)
– WL 91.2% and ELR 86.3% (Target 95%)

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland County level performance for Red 1 & 2
and A19 was not achieved for April 2015, but Red 2 & A19 all improved at
County level, whilst Red 1 did not meet the standard. There is now a monthly
Better Patient Care Transformation Board which will focus on the next stages
of development for EMAS and will support development and delivery of a
range of initiatives designed to transform service delivery across the region.

103

Ambulance Handovers
31.

In 2014/15, 19.9% of handovers between ambulance and A&E took place in
over 30 minutes against a zero tolerance, and 5.3% took over an hour. The
2015/16 contract now requires agreement of improvement across the local
percentiles at CCG level. Actions during periods of peak demand are being
undertaken to ensure patient safety. These are subject to a Quality Impact
Assessment which is clinically reviewed by the EMAS Director of Nursing and
Quality and the new Medical Director. EMAS are to develop a clinical risk
matrix to monitor this.

Leicestershire Partnership Trust (LPT)
32.

The following community and quality and safe care related performance
indicators, updated from LPT Board reports, are reported on an exception
basis.

% Admissions Gate
Kept

STEIS – SI action
plans implemented
within timescales

March 2015 performance is at 83.1%, the 2014/15
performance is at 86.4% against a target of 95%. Although it
is a significant performance increase from previous months,
performance is still below the 95% threshold required for
compliance. It should be noted that LPT performance relating
to gate keeping in March 2015 was a result of system
migration and is not a reflection of actual practice within the
Crisis Resolution Service. Actions have been taken to remedy
the data issue and we expect to see a further increase in
reported performance next month.
Community Health Services (100.0%) and AMHLD division
(100.0%) met the 95% threshold. Families, Young Persons
and Children’s achieved (66.7%) and fell below threshold.
FYPC’s under performance was due to:- Actions 1 and 4 (out
of 6 recommendations) were not evidenced. Action 1: The
office accommodation will not allow the team to be colocated. Additional information to evidence that additional
support and communication is taking place was not provided
(i.e. weekly allocation meeting and communications between
teams). Action 4: Evidence of spot checking of record keeping
for appointment types had not been provided. Completion of
this action plan has now been finalised.

104

Clostridium Difficile (C
Diff) cases

Never Events

The Monitor target reflects the annual de minimus limit set at
12 cases as set out in the Monitor Risk Assurance
Framework 2014/15 and is monitored each quarter. The
Commissioner threshold is set provisionally at 9 cases and is
reported monthly as per the Quality Schedule for 2014/15.
The total number of Clostridium Difficile cases for LPT to date
is 11. Patients which may have been included in previous
month’s figures have been validated, with the year to date
figure amended subsequently. All cases undergo a full RCA,
and lessons learnt identified and actioned for the staff to take
forward. Two of the cases are resamples from patients
previously known to be Clostridium difficile positive. These
samples were taken on the advice of Microbiology so
considered to be appropriate.
There is 1 never event for the 2014/15, this was concerning
the administering of medication.

Outcomes Framework - Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) Performance –
Appendix C
33.

The Outcomes Framework covers 5 domains and a set of indicators within
each one that CCGs are nationally accountable to NHS England to ensure
improvement on, attached as Appendix C. Data for a number of indicators
have now been published, and the following provides an overview by
exception.

Dementia Diagnosis
34.

This indicator is to improve the number of people who have a clinical
diagnosis of dementia; it measures the number of people with a diagnosis of
dementia as a proportion of the number estimated to have the condition
(prevalence). At March 2015, there were 60.3% of patients diagnosed with
dementia for West Leicestershire CCG and 54% diagnosed for East
Leicestershire and Rutland (ELR) CCG against a national standard of 67%.
Work continues with practices to increase Dementia Diagnosis Rates.
Dementia workshops were held on 18th June as part of the Sharing Best
Practice Protected Learning Time Event in West Leicestershire. ELR are also
pursuing with LPT the use of nursing input for care homes and exploring with
the NHSE Regional team the possibility of GP training.

Increase the quality of life for people with long term conditions
35.

Data was released in January, relating to the quality of life for those people
with a long term condition. This is for 2013/14 only and is calculated from the
GP Patient surveys. West Leicestershire and East Leicestershire and Rutland
have not achieved their target score, however the target set is required to be
met in 2014/15. Therefore these indicators have been RAG rated as amber.
West Leicestershire and East Leicestershire and Rutland have a higher score

105

than the England average (England - 73.0, West Leicestershire – 75.1, East
Leicestershire and Rutland – 75.5).
Composite indicator comprised of (i) GP Services and (ii) GP Out of Hours
36.

This indicator relates to reducing the number of ‘poor’ responses to the patient
surveys for GP and Out of Hours services. The target set for 2014/15 was to
achieve fewer ‘poor’ responses. West Leicestershire and East Leicestershire
and Rutland have fewer ‘poor’ responses than the England average (England
score of 7.0, West Leicestershire and East Leicestershire and Rutland score
of 6.9). This has been rated as amber.

MRSA
37.

During 2014/15 there were no reported incidences of MRSA assigned to West
Leicestershire or East Leicestershire and Rutland CCGs. There have however
been 6 cases at UHL during 2014/15.

Public Health and Prevention Priorities Dashboard - Appendix D
38.

Appendix D to this report is a dashboard summarising performance against
key strategic health and wellbeing priorities. The priorities include Better
Public Health, Better Physical Health, improving Children and Young People’s
Health and Better Mental Health. Data has been updated for a number of
indicators, the following provides an overview by exception.

39.

In June Public Health England produced its summary health profile for 2015
for Leicestershire. Whilst most areas show above average performance the
profile suggests just two areas significantly worse than the England average –
incidence of malignant melanoma and recorded diabetes.

Drug Treatment
40.

Indicators showing the successful completion of drug treatment for opiate
users and non-opiate users have both declined slightly between quarters 2
and 3 this year. However successful completions fluctuate quarter on quarter
and opiates performance remains within the top quartile range and
significantly above national performance.

Smoking Cessation
41.

Smoking cessation services have recently had reduced results, which are
attributed to increased use of e-cigarettes. The stop smoking service has
been re-procured and the new provider, Quit 51, commenced in April 2015.
As of 10th May 2015 we know that, compared to this time last year, Quit 51
already have more smokers engaging the service and more quit dates set.
This is a very encouraging start as we would have expected a dip in quarter 1
with a new provider.

106

Adult Obesity/Physical Activity
42.

Leicestershire is continuing to develop a comprehensive strategy to reduce
inactivity and overweight adults and started a whole systems transformation
review of physical activity in May 2015 in order to develop a system wide
response to the problem. The Physical Activity outcomes shown are well
within reasonable expectations and reflect the current “state of play” with
regard to what is a growing societal problem of increasing inactivity and
obesity.

Child Obesity
43.

2014 data regarding excess weight for 4-5 year olds and 10-11 year olds
shows that Leicestershire figures are very similar to 2013 and the county
remains in the top performing quartile of all authorities.

Breastfeeding
44.

The percentage of mothers initiating breastfeeding has reduced from 74.2%
(2012/13) to 68.7% (2013/14). However, breastfeeding prevalence at 6-8
weeks has increased from 45.2% during 2013/14 to 45.5% during 14/15
showing an increasing trend for the last 2 years.

Child Oral Health
45.

A survey of the oral health of five year olds was conducted in 2012 and
published in Autumn 2013. This identifies the prevalence and severity of
dental decay by measuring the number of decayed, missing and filled teeth,
this report identified the oral health of 5 years olds as an issue. Data from the
more recent Oral Survey of 3 year olds shows Leicestershire children to have
a significantly higher percentage of decayed, missing or filled teeth compared
to the national average. The figure in Leicestershire is 18.6% compared to
12% nationally.

NHS Health Checks
46.

The take up of NHS health checks by those eligible has reduced slightly
during quarter 4 to 44.1% against a long term target of 61%, however the
cumulative result is currently at 46.6%.

Mental Health
47.

As per NHS England's Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT)
team, nationally published data only is now used to assess performance
against the Access target. Neither East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG nor
West Leicestershire CCG achieved the national 15% target. Work continues
with the provider and developments include:
•

establishing links with local companies in order to provide group therapy for
staff.

107

•
•
•
•

•

•
•

establishing regular meetings with LPT interface teams to better manage
patients not appropriate for the service.
increasing the number of telephone assessments being undertaken.
an ongoing increase in the number of rolling stress control groups.
linking in with County Adult Social Care services to promote the service and to
explore opportunities to offer self-referrals. e.g.carer assessments in Q2
2015/16.
establishing pathways focusing on insomnia (an indicator of anxiety and
depression), the intention is to provide self-referral leaflets with repeat
prescriptions of hypnotics which will result in lower dependency on hypnotic
drugs.
potential NHS England funding may be allocated to CCG’s to address waiting
times, is being investigated.
recruitment of 5 additional clinical workers is underway.

48.

Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS) improvements were
identified as a priority area by the Health and Wellbeing Board at previous
meetings. The LPT data for patients receiving treatment within 13 weeks
(routine) has shown a slight improvement on the previous reported data to
83% at March 2015 against a target of 95%. A comprehensive plan has now
been formed within the organisation to change the way these services are
accessed and delivered and is currently in its implementation phase.

49.

Excess under 75 mortality rate in adults with serious mental illness has
declined from 362.6 in 2011/12 to 384.5 in 2012/13.

50.

The suicide rate has also declined from the previous reported data to 8.8 per
100,000 population, this equates to 169 people for the period 2011-13.

51.

The following mental health related performance indicators have been
updated from LPT Board reports

% Delayed
Patients (Mental
Health)

Early intervention
in Psychosis - %
newly diagnosed
cases against
commissioner
contract

The 2014/15 result is 5.9%, below the 7.5% target. For the month
of March 15 the performance was at 8.7%. Patients being delayed
during discharge for the month of March were the result of the
following categories; Housing (19.2%), Rehabilitation (15.1%),
NHS (12.3%), Exercising choice (9.6%) and other (43.8%).
Divisional representatives are continuing to meet with Housing
Leads and Social Care representatives from both City and County
Councils and are supportive of housing options.
The 2014/15 figure is 118.2% against a target of 95%. Small
numbers involved in the denominator for calculation of this
indicator can equate to significant swings in performance month on
month; 163.6% for the month of March is the result of 18 newly
diagnosed cases against the provisional monthly commissioner
target of 11. The service is dependent on the number of referrals
received into the service and the appropriateness of the referral.

108

Recommendations
52.

The Board is asked to:
a) note the performance summary, issues identified this quarter and actions
planned in response to improve performance; and
b) comment on any recommendations or other issues with regard to the report.

List of Appendices
Appendix A – Better Care Fund Summary Dashboard
Appendix B – Provider and CCG Performance Summary Dashboard
Appendix C – Outcome Framework CCG Performance Summary Dashboard
Appendix D – Public Health and Prevention Priorities Summary Dashboard
Background papers
Leicestershire Partnership Trust Board Papers can be found at the following link:
http://www.leicspart.nhs.uk/_Aboutus-Trustboardmeetings2015.aspx
University Hospitals Leicester Trust Board meetings can be found at the following
link:
http://www.leicestershospitals.nhs.uk/aboutus/our-structure-and-people/board-ofdirectors/board-meeting-dates/
Officers to Contact
Kate Allardyce and Sarah Cooke - Performance Team (Leicester & Lincoln)
Arden/GEM Commissioning Support Unit
Tel: 0116 295 7272, Mobile: 07795126428
Email: Sarah.Cooke@gemcsu.nhs.uk
Janine Dellar – Head of Public Health Intelligence and Andy Brown, Performance
and Business Intelligence Team Leader, Leicestershire County Council. Tel: 0116
3056096 Email: andy.brown@leics.gov.uk

66.80%

140.47

♦ METRIC 5: Patient / service user experience.
Patients satisfied with support to manage long term
health conditions

♦ METRIC 6: Emergency admissions for injuries
due to falls in people aged 65 and over per
100,000 population, per month

Scheme Details

717.44

♦ METRIC 4: Total non-elective admissions into
hospital (general and acute), per 100,000
population, average monthly rate per quarter

Metric Supporting

350.48

♦ METRICPriority
3: Delayed transfers of care from
hospital per 100,000 population, average monthly
rate per quarter

62%

720.43

289.22

91.5%

524.8

Current
Data

P4P
Target

Commentary

BCF DToCs targets are quarterly and 275.6 covers the
period Apr-Jun ’15. Performance in April was higher at
A 289.2, although this is somewhat lower than the position at
the end of Q4, 2014/15 (364.7). The target shown is for
March 2016 i.e. Q4 of 2015/16.

The target relates to hospital discharges between October
and December 2015 followed by accommodation location
between January and March 2016. The measure is
G monitored on a rolling period with the current performance
relating to hospital discharges between December '14 and
February '15 and accommodation location between March
and May '15.

The current data shows an estimate of the full year figure
G for 2015/16. At 524.8 admissions per 100,000, this is
forecast to meet the target. Target is for March 2016.

RAG
A

157

Current
Month
Data

834

Cumulative
Target

738

Cumulative
Data

Current month data is
for May 2015,
cumulative data is
January to May 2015

Commentary

Target is for March 2016. Work is still underway to identify
this data at County HWBB level.

Current data shows January - September 2014 results
published in January 15. Target is for March 2016.

Target shown is pay for performance target of 717.44 for
December 2015 (Q3 15/16). March 2016 (Q4 15/16)
target is 656.16. Current data shows the monthly average
for the period January to March 2015 - Q4 of 2014/15, the
R red rating reflects the position against the current quarterly
target of 684.43. This is provisional data and subject to
change when the Better Care Support Team publish
revised guidance and the submission template.14/15 year
end data shows the position at Q4.

NA

168

Current
Month
Target

LOW

LOW

LOW

Trend

2041
(Dec 15)

62%

720.43

364.66

83.5%

710.5

14/15
Yr End

♦ Rapid Response Falls Service
♦ METRIC 4: Total non-elective admissions into
♦ 7 Day Working Primary Care
hospital (general and acute), per 100,000
♦ Rapid Assessment for Older Persons Unit
population, average monthly rate per quarter
♦ Integrated Health and Care Crisis Response

Better Care
Fund
Overarching
Metrics

82.01%

♦ METRIC 2: Proportion of older people (65 and
over) who were still at home 91 days after
discharge from hospital into reablement /
rehabilitation services

Target

670.39

Metric

BETTER CARE FUND

♦ METRIC 1: Permanent admissions of older
people (aged 65 and over) to residential and
nursing care homes, per 100,000 population, per
year

APPENDIX A

109

UHL

♦ Friends & Family Test Score - in-patients

♦ Patient experience of hospital care

Indicator

Cancer Wait Times

Hospital Quality

DTOC

ED Waiting Times

Diagnostic Waiting
Time

A
R
R

♦ Cancer 62 day - from screening service
(WLCCG)

♦ Cancer 62 day - consultant upgrade (WLCCG)

R

♦ Cancer 31 day surgery (WLCCG)

♦ Cancer 62 day (WLCCG)

A

♦ Cancer 31 day (WLCCG)

R
A

LOW

♦ Mixed Sex Accommodation

R

♦ Cancer 2 week wait (WLCCG)

LOW

R

LOW

R

R

LOW

♦ Never Events

♦ Emergency Dept. Handovers between UHL ED
& Ambulance > 30 mins
♦ UHL Delayed Transfers of Care - no. of patients
as a % of occupied bed days
♦ Cancelled Operations - non re-admitted in 28
days

R

♦ UHL Emergency Dept. Waiting Time < 4 Hours

R
A

LOW

G

G

A

A

G

DOT RAG

♦ Diagnostic Waiting Times < 6 weeks (All
Providers) (WLCCG)

♦ 52 Week waiters (incomplete)

LOW

Trend

Indicator

♦ Cancer 62 day - consultant upgrade (EL&RCCG)

♦ Cancer 62 day - from screening service
(EL&RCCG)

♦ Cancer 62 day (EL&RCCG)

♦ Cancer 31 day surgery (EL&RCCG)

♦ Cancer 31 day (EL&RCCG)

♦ Cancer 2 week wait (EL&RCCG)

♦ Safety Thermometer (% No Harms)

♦ Pressure Ulcers (Grade 2)

♦ Pressure Ulcers (Avoidable Grade 3 & 4)

♦ 12 Hour Trolley Waits

♦ Diagnostic Waiting Times < 6 weeks (All
Providers) (ELRCCG)
♦ Emergency Dept. Handovers between UHL ED
& Ambulance > 1 Hour

♦ 18 Week Referral to Treatment Admitted (All
Providers) (ELRCCG)
♦ 18 Week Referral to Treatment Non Admitted
(All Providers) (ELRCCG)
♦ 18 Week Referral to Treatment Incomplete (All
Providers) (ELRCCG)

♦ Friends & Family Test Score - Maternity

LOW

LOW

LOW

LOW

Trend

QUARTER 4 2014/15

♦ Friends & Family Test Score - A&E

PROVIDER & CCG INDICATORS

♦ 18 Week Referral to Treatment Admitted (All
Providers) (WLCCG)
♦ 18 Week Referral to Treatment Non Admitted
Referral to Treatment (All Providers) (WLCCG)
♦ 18 Week Referral to Treatment Incomplete (All
Providers) (WLCCG)

Patient Experience

APPENDIX B

R

R

A

A

A

A

A

G

G

R

R

A

G

G

A

A

A

DOT RAG

110

EMAS

LPT

Quality - Safe Care

Community & Other

Mental Health

East Midlands
Ambulance Service

Indicator

A

♦ Compliance with hygiene code

LOW

R

♦ STEIS - SI actions plans implemented within
timescales

R

LOW

♦ Never Events

G
R

LOW

A

♦ % Admissions Gate Kept

♦ % Delayed Patients (DToC) - Community

♦ Occupancy Rate - Community

LOW

♦ Median Length of Stay - Mental Health

A

♦ Occupancy Rate - Mental Health
LOW

R

♦ Ambulance Response Times Cat A Red 2 (8
minutes) conditions life threatening & most time
critical, less so than Red 1 (WLCCG)

♦ Average Length of Stay - Mental Health

R

♦ Ambulance Response Times Cat A Red 1 (8
minutes) conditions life threatening & most time
critical (WLCCG)

♦ Clostridium Difficile (C Diff) Cases

♦ MRSA Bacteraemia Cases - Community

team year to date

♦ Total number of Home Treatment episodes
carried out by Crisis Resolution

♦ Average Length of Stay - Community Hospital
rehab wards

diagnosed cases against commissioner contract

♦ Early intervention in Psychosis - % newly

♦ % Delayed Patients (DToC) - Mental Health

♦ Ambulance Response Times Cat A - ambulance
arriving at the scene within 19 minutes (ELRCCG)

LOW

LOW

LOW

A

R

♦ Ambulance Response Times Cat A Red 2 (8
minutes) conditions life threatening & most time
critical, less so than Red 1 (ELRCCG)

A

A

R

♦ Ambulance Response Times Cat A Red 1 (8
minutes) conditions life threatening & most time
critical (ELRCCG)

DOT RAG

A

LOW

Trend

♦ Ambulance Response Times Cat A - ambulance
arriving at the scene within 19 minutes (WLCCG)

Indicator

QUARTER 4 2014/15

A

DOT RAG

♦ Ambulance Response Times Cat A - ambulance
arriving at the scene within 19 minutes

Trend

PROVIDER & CCG INDICATORS

♦ Ambulance Response Times Cat A Red 1 (8
minutes) conditions life threatening & most time
critical
♦ Ambulance Response Times Cat A Red 2 (8
minutes) conditions life threatening & most time
critical, less so than Red 1

APPENDIX B

R

G

G

G

G

G

111

CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP

DOMAIN 1

DOMAIN 2

DOMAIN 3

DOMAIN 4

A

♦ Employment of people with long term conditions (difference
between England population and people with LTC)

LOW
LOW

♦ Incidence of health associated infection CDIFF

A

LOW

A
A
G

G

G

A
R
A
G
G
G

R

LOW

R

R

LOW
LOW

A

LOW

♦ Incidence of health associated infection MRSA

♦ Emergency Admissions for children with Lower Respiratory
Tract Infections (LRTI) per 100,000 population
♦ Composite indicator comprised of (i) GP Services & (ii) GP Out of
Hours. Reduce negative responses to the survey
♦ Overall experience of NHS Dental Service
♦ Access to GP Services
♦ Access to NHS Dental Services
♦ Friends & Family Test Burton Score - Maternity
♦ Friends & Family Test Burton Score - in-patients
♦ Friends & Family Test Burton Score - A&E

♦ Rate of emergency admissions within 30 days of discharge

♦ Employment of people with mental illness (difference between
England population and people with LTC)
♦ Emergency Admissions for acute conditions that should not
usually require hospital admission

G

A

♦ Proportion of people feeling supported to manage their own
condition

♦ Health-related quality of life for carers

R

♦ Estimated diagnosis rate of people with dementia

LOW

A

R

♦ Health-related quality of life for people with long term
conditions

LOW

R

LOW

♦ Unplanned Hospitalisation for asthma, diabetes and epilepsy in
under 19s per 100,000 population (WLCCG)

A

LOW

G
G

♦ 1 year survival from all cancers
♦ 1 year survival from breast, lung and colorectal cancer
♦ Potential years of life lost (PYLL) from causes considered
amenable to healthcare
♦ Unplanned Hospitalisation for chronic ambulatory care sensitive
conditions (adults) per 100,000 population

DOT RAG

Trend

EL&R CCG Indicator

% increase in people dying at home
Psychological Therapies - % of people who enter the service
Psychological Therapies- Recovery rate

♦ Incidence of health associated infection CDIFF

♦ Incidence of health associated infection MRSA

♦ Emergency Admissions for children with Lower Respiratory Tract
Infections (LRTI) per 100,000 population
♦ Composite indicator comprised of (i) GP Services & (ii) GP Out of
Hours. Reduce negative responses to the survey
♦ Overall experience of NHS Dental Service
♦ Access to GP Services
♦ Access to NHS Dental Services

♦ Rate of emergency admissions within 30 days of discharge

♦ Employment of people with mental illness (difference between
England population and people with LTC)
♦ Emergency Admissions for acute conditions that should not usually
require hospital admission

♦ Health-related quality of life for carers

♦ Employment of people with long term conditions (difference
between England population and people with LTC)

♦ Proportion of people feeling supported to manage their own
condition

LOW

LOW

LOW

LOW

LOW

LOW

LOW

G

A

G

R

♦ Estimated diagnosis rate of people with dementia

G
A

LOW

LOW

G

R

G
G

DOT RAG

♦ Health-related quality of life for people with long term conditions

♦ Unplanned Hospitalisation for asthma, diabetes and epilepsy in
under 19s per 100,000 population

LOW

LOW

Trend

QUARTER 4 2014/15

♦ 1 year survival from all cancers
♦ 1 year survival from breast, lung and colorectal cancer
♦ Potential years of life lost (PYLL) from causes considered amenable
to healthcare
♦ Unplanned Hospitalisation for chronic ambulatory care sensitive
conditions (adults) per 100,000 population

CCG INDICATORS

WL CCG Indicator

APPENDIX C

% increase in people dying at home
Psychological Therapies - % of people who enter the service
Psychological Therapies- Recovery rate

DOMAI
N5

G
A
G

G

G

R
R
G

A

R

R

R

A

112

MENTAL HEALTH

PUBLIC HEALTH

PHYSICAL
HEALTH

CYP HEALTH

G
A
A

LOW
LOW
LOW

% of people with a high anxiety score - self-reported well-being (Leics) (PHOF 2.23iv)

Excess under 75 mortality rate in adults with serious mental illness (Leics) (PHOF 4.09)

Suicide rate (Persons per 100,000) (Leics) (PHOF 4.10)

R

A

% of mothers breastfeeding at 6-8 weeks (PHOF 2.02ii)
LOW

A

% of mothers initiating breastfeeding (PHOF 2.02i)

% children aged 5 years with one or more decayed, missing or filled teeth (PHOF 4.02)

A

G

G

% of physically active adults (PHOF 2.13i)

% of physically active children - participation in more than 3hrs a week of community
sport only
% of physically active children - participation in more than 3hrs a week of curriculum
sport only

G

% of eligible women screened - cervical cancer (Leics) (PHOF 2.20ii)

G

LOW
G

G

LOW

% of eligible women screened - breast cancer (Leics) (PHOF 2.20i)

Under 75 mortality rate from cancer (Persons per 100,000) (Leics) (PHOF 4.05i)

G

A

Take up of the NHS Health Check Programme – by those eligible (2.22iv)
LOW

G

Life expectancy at birth(Females) (Leics) (PHOF 0.1ii)

Under 75 mortality rate from all cardiovascular diseases (Persons per 100,000) (Leics)
(PHOF 4.04i)
Under 75 mortality rate from respiratory disease (Persons per 100,000) (Leics) (PHOF
4.07i)

G

G

LOW

Slope index of inequality in life expectancy at birth (Females) (Leics) (PHOF 0.2iii)

Life expectancy at birth (Males) (Leics) (PHOF 0.1ii)

G

LOW

Slope index of inequality in life expectancy at birth (Males) (Leics) (PHOF 0.2iii)

A

G

LOW

% of people with a low happiness score - self-reported well-being (Leics) (PHOF 2.23iii)

Emotional health of looked after children - mean SDQ scores (PHOF 2.08)

G

LOW

% of people with a low satisfaction score - self-reported well-being (Leics) (PHOF 2.23i)

DOT RAG

Trend

Indicator

% of children with excess weight - 10-11 year olds (Leics) (PHOF 2.06ii)

% of children with excess weight - 4-5 year olds (Leics) (PHOF 2.06i)

% of adults participating in one or more sports a week for 30 minutes or more (Leics)

% of physically inactive adults (Leics) (PHOF 2.13ii)

% of women smoking at time of delivery (Leics) (PHOF 2.03)

Number of self-reported 4 week smoking quitters (Leics)

Prevalence of smoking among persons aged 18 years and over (Leics) (PHOF 2.14)

Under 18 conceptions (rate per 1,000) (Leics) (PHOF 2.04)

People presenting with HIV at a late stage of infection - % of presentations (Leics)
(PHOF 3.04)

Chlamydia diagnoses (rate per 100,000 15-24 year olds) (Leics) (PHOF 3.02ii)

Admissions to hospital for alcohol related causes (rate per 100,000) (Leics) (PHOF 2.18)

% successful completion of drug treatment - non-opiate users (PHOF 2.15ii)

% successful completion of drug treatment - opiate users (PHOF 2.15i)

% of adults classified as overweight or obese (Leics) (PHOF 2.12)

% of adults in contact with secondary mental health services living in settled
accommodation (ASCOF 1H)

Delayed transfers of care (mental health service users)

Average length of stay in acute hospitals - mental health

A
G

LOW

G

G

G

A

A

G

G

A

A

A

A

A

R

G

NA

G

R

DOT RAG

LOW

LOW

LOW

LOW

LOW

LOW

LOW

LOW

LOW

LOW

Trend

QUARTER 4 2014/15

% of patients that received treatment in Child & Adolescent Mental Health Services
(CAMHS) within 13 weeks - (routine)
% of patients that received treatment in Child & Adolescent Mental Health Services
(CAMHS) within 4 weeks - (urgent)

PUBLIC HEALTH AND PREVENTION INDICATORS

Indicator

APPENDIX D

113

114

This page is intentionally left blank

115

Agenda Item 14

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 16TH JULY 2015
REPORT OF NHS ENGLAND
PERSONAL MEDICAL SERVICES REVIEW
Introduction
1.

NHS England directed all regional teams to undertake a programme to review
all local PMS contracts and complete the review process by March 2016.

2.

One of the purposes of this national review is to consider how to apply the
principles of equitable funding to PMS resources.

3.

A national data collection exercise identified that the premium element of PMS
expenditure nationally is £325 million. That is the value of how far PMS
expenditure exceeds the equivalent items of General Medical Services (GMS)
expenditure. This means that NHS England pays, on average, a premium of
£13.52 for patients registered with PMS practices. The premium will reduce to
around £235 million over the seven years to 2021/22, as the GMS Minimum
Practice Income Guarantee (MPIG) is gradually phased out. This reduces the
average premium per registered PMS patient to £9.80.

4.

It is essential, that the principles of equitable funding by moving towards a
position where it can be demonstrated that all practices whether on a GMS or
PMS contract receive the same core funding for providing the core services
expected of all GP practice. Any additional funding above this must be clearly
linked to enhanced quality or services or the specific needs of a local
population, and practices should have an equal opportunity to earn premium
funding if they meet the necessary criteria.

5.

A further purpose of the review is to seek to secure best value from future
investment of the ‘premium’ element of PMS funding by ensuring available
resources for investment are deployed in line with the re-investment criteria
which have been agreed between the NHS England regional team and the
CCGs. In principle these criteria are that any additional investment in general
practice services that go beyond core national requirements should:
•

reflect joint AT/CCG strategic plans for primary care;

•

secure services or outcomes that go beyond what is expected of

•

core general practice or improve primary care premises;

•

help reduce health inequalities;

•

give equality of opportunity to all GP practices;

•

support fairer distribution of funding at a locality level.

116

6.

Due to all Leicestershire CCGs having full delegation for primary medical care
through co-commissioning from the 1st April 2015, it is now the responsibility of
each CCG to take forward the PMS reviews. Through this arrangement the
CCGs should underpin the PMS review by applying the principles of the
national guidance published by NHS England as set out below:
(i) A case by case review of all affected practices to ensure that they are not
serving special populations that merit continued additional funding and that
they would not be unfairly disadvantaged by the changes;
(ii) Any proposals to reduce current levels of PMS funding for any practices
should reflect decisions on how the money freed up will be redeployed,
including proposals for reinvestment of resources to support local
improvement and innovation in primary care. This is to ensure that changes
to practice funding reflect the overall net impact of any change, and
practices don’t have to manage a reduction of funding, before subsequent
reinvestment is made available;
(iii) There is a need to engage with patients where changes to services are
proposed which result in different services being available to patients;
(iv) Any resources freed up from PMS reviews should always be reinvested in
general practice services (including as appropriate, general practice
premises developments). This funding will be available to all practices
(GMS, PMS, and Alternative Primary Medical Service (APMS) providers);
(v) Except with the agreement of all the CCGs involved, PMS resources should
not be redeployed outside the current CCG locality. (i.e. the CCG of which
the PMS practice is a member);

Background
7.

All PMS practices were offered three options:
Move to GMS.
(i) Practices have a contractual right to revert to a GMS Contract following
NHS England's standard operating Procedures.
Remain in PMS.
(ii)

Practices can choose to remain on a PMS contract and participate in the
PMS review with the expectation that there will be a renegotiation of these
contracts that will remove any premium funding that cannot be directly
related to services provided over and above those expected from a core
GMS contract. The pace of change for the removal of funding will be over
4 years. The first year is 2014/15 but the premium deduction will not be
enacted until 2016/17, with equal deducts taking place across 2 years.

Transition Offer
(iii) PMS Practices can opt to revert to a GMS Contract and access transitional
support. This was a time-limited offer. Under this option, recognising the
current risks and issues impacting on local practices, transitional support

117

would be provided over a period of 6 years starting in 2015/16. The target
contract value at the end of the period will be the equivalent to the GMS
contract value without any MPIG (the seven-year endpoint).
8.

The outcome position following the offer to practices is that from a total of 48
PMS practices 46 practices opted to revert to a GMS contract with the transition
offer of a six year reduction of the PMS premium. This equates to a total fund of
approximately £4.1 million released for reinvestment. Two PMS practices
opted to remain in PMS and take part in the review (one practice in City CCG
and one practice in East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG)

9.

All three CCGs have agreed that in 15/16 the net deduction from all PMS
practices choosing the transition offer will be reinvested back into the practices
that have had a reduction of income. The reinvestment will be non-recurrent in
15/16 meaning in 16/17 practices will have a 2 year reduction. This transition
year means that the CCGs will have a fund for reinvestment equivalent to 2
years deduction in 16/17 for reinvestment which equates across the three
CCGs to approximately £1.3 million. The rationale for the transition year is to
ensure that practices are not destabilised and have an opportunity to plan for
the reduction in 16/17. It also gives the CCGs time to finalise the reinvestment
criteria and the process to access the funding.

Current Position
Re-investment of freed up PMS premium
10. All CCGs are finalising their reinvestment criteria and process and have plans
in place for these to be signed off at their respective Primary Care
Commissioning Committees by the end of October 2015. This will ensure that
the process to access and/or the use of funds is communicated and completed
by March 2016 to ensure that the reinvestment of the freed up resource is
seamless.
11. Initial meetings have taken place with the remaining City CCG PMS practice
and a process and timeline has been agreed for the PMS review which is
planned to be completed by the end of September 2015.
12. The initial meeting with the remaining East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG
PMS practice has been deferred until August/ September due to circumstances
within the practice.
Recommendation
13. That the report be noted.
Officer to Contact
Lesley Harrison
Pharmacy and Medical Lead Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland
NHS England (Leicestershire and Lincolnshire Area Team)

118

Appendix A
Better Care Together Leadership Board for the emotional health and wellbeing
of children and young people
DRAFT TERMS OF REFERENCE
1 Introduction
Strong emotional health and wellbeing is a key element of a healthy childhood. All
agencies that support children, and those that care for them, can contribute towards
healthy emotional development and the establishment of good mental health into
adulthood.
A child with good emotional health and wellbeing will have a sense of
•

feeling loved, trusted, understood, valued and safe

119

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

being interested in life and having opportunities to enjoy themselves
being hopeful and optimistic
being able to learn and having opportunities to succeed
accepting who they are and recognising what they are good at
having a sense of belonging in their family, school and community
feeling they have some control over their own life
having the strength to cope when something is wrong (resilience) and the
ability to solve problems.

They will have the capacity to
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Develop psychologically, emotionally, spiritually, creatively and intellectively
Initiate, develop and sustain mutually satisfying relationships
Use and enjoy solitude
Be aware of others and empathise with them
Play and learn
Develop a sense of right and wrong
Face and resolve problems and setbacks and learn from them.

A range of organisations have responsibility for fostering the educational, social and
healthy development of children and young people. These organisations agree that
by working together they can deliver effective and co-ordinated services which make
best use of limited resources.

Within Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland, a Better Care Together (BCT)
programme has been established to co-ordinate health and social care services.
This Leadership Board will be part of the BCT Programme.

2

Purpose

The Leadership Board will give strategic direction to all partnership work across
Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland to improve the emotional health and wellbeing
of children and young people.
It will prepare the joint strategy for comprehensive services to support the emotional
health and mental health of children and young people.
It will consider opportunities for strategic partnership approaches including lead
commissioning, joint commissioning and pooling of budgets.
The Leadership Board will establish and commission multi-agency task groups to
undertake specific items of work.
The Leadership Board will establish a stakeholder group and stakeholder forums

120

3

Specific objectives

Specific objectives for the Board will include:
Development of a shared strategy for child emotional health and wellbeing
Joint commissioning of services to specifically support children’s emotional health
and wellbeing.
Overview of performance and impact of services to improve emotional health and
wellbeing.

4

Governance

The Board will report to the BCT Childrens Workstream. It will also prepare reports
for the Health and Wellbeing Boards for Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland.
There will also be links to other workstreams, in particular the Mental Health
workstream.

5

Scope

The scope of the Board will include all services supporting the educational, social
and health development of children from birth to age 18.

6

Membership

Director of Children and Family Services - Leicestershire County Council
Director of Nursing and Quality – Leicester City Clinical Commissioning Group
Consultant in Public Health – Leicestershire County Council
Consultant in Public Health – Leicester City Council
Associate Director for Children and Families Commissioning – West Leicestershire
Clinical Commissioning Group
Representative from Rutland County Council

121

Director of Children Families and Young People Services – Leicestershire
Partnership Trust
NHS England representation
Healthwatch representative
Commissioning Manager for CAMHS
All members should attend regularly and, where possible, should have a designated
deputy.
7

Frequency of meetings

Meetings should be held at least every three months although more frequent
meetings may be required at certain times.

July 2015, October 2015, January 2016, April 2016

122

This page is intentionally left blank

